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T O  O U R  S T A K E H O L D E R S

The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., established in 1917, is a leading tire manufacturer. 

It has also deployed its polymer expertise in several lines of diversified business, 

including high-pressure hoses, sealants and adhesives, other industrial products, 

aircraft fixtures and components, and golf equipment. Yokohama is laying a foundation 

for sustainable growth in tires and in diversified products in Japan and overseas by 

developing high-functionality products and by expanding its production capacity. 

Forward-Looking Statements
This annual report contains forward-looking estimates and forecasts based on management’s plans, which are subject to unforeseeable risks and uncertainties. 
The Company’s business results could differ significantly from those estimates and forecasts.

On the cover
Yokohama showcases original advanced technologies in the AERO-Y EV concept vehicle; for example, fin tires for reducing aerodynamic drag, 
weight-reducing and high-strength body design technology born of the Company’s R&D in aircraft components, and sealants and adhesives that 
accommodate composite materials.

We posted record highs for net sales, operating income, 
and net income in 2013. Net income increased 7.3% 
over the previous year, to ¥35.0 billion, on a 14.0% 
increase in operating income, to ¥56.6 billion, and a 
7.5% increase in net sales, to ¥601.6 billion. That 
performance occasioned a ¥2 increase in our annual 
dividend, to ¥22. 
 Characterizing the economic environment were 
generally favorable trends. Economic recovery got 
under way in the United States. In Japan, the Abe 
government’s proactive economic policies stimulated 
growth, corporations reported an improving business 
outlook overall, and consumer spending turned upward. 
Business conditions in the tire sector improved as the 
yen weakened and as raw material prices declined.
 Driving our robust sales and earnings performance 
were a recovery in tire business overseas, led by gains 
in North America and China, and strong sales in the 
Japanese market for replacement tires. Also 
contributing to the sales and earnings gains were 

strong sales in industrial products, led by automotive 
hoses, marine hoses and pneumatic marine fenders, 
and conveyor belts. In addition, earnings benefited 
from a decline in raw material costs and from the 
weakening of the yen against the US dollar. 
 
Two thousand fourteen is the third year in Phase III 
of our Grand Design 100 medium-term management 
plan. We launched Grand Design 100 in 2006 with an 
eye to increasing our annual net sales to ¥1 trillion 
and our annual operating income to ¥100 billion by 
2017, our corporate centennial. 
 Grand Design 100 comprises four three-year 
segments, each focused on a strategic theme. Our 
theme for Phase III is Robust and Responsive Growth, 
and our three-year quantitative targets center on 
achieving cumulative operating income of ¥150 
billion on cumulative net sales of ¥1.8 trillion. More 
than two years into Phase III, we are on track to 
exceed our three-year targets for sales and earnings. 

Our projections for 2014 call for net income to rise 
7.1%, to ¥37.5 billion, on an 11.2% increase in 
operating income, to ¥63.0 billion, and a 7.5% 
increase in net sales, to ¥647.0 billion. Underlying 
those projections are our expectations of continuing 
recovery in North American and Chinese demand and 
of continuing positive results in Japan from the 
government’s economic policies. We plan to maintain 
the annual dividend at ¥22—an interim dividend of 
¥10 and a year-end dividend of ¥12.

We at Yokohama are committed to achieving 
sustainable growth as a global organization. And we 
are undertaking a diversity of programs and measures 
for attaining that goal in accordance with our Grand 
Design 100 medium-term management plan. We 
invite your careful attention to our progress. 

May 2014

Hikomitsu Noji
President and Representative Director

Basic Philosophy
To enrich people’s lives and contribute to their greater happiness and well-being by devoting 
our wholehearted energies and advanced technology to the creation of beneficial products. 

Management Policies
Take on the challenge of new technologies to produce new value.
Develop proprietary business fields to expand the scope of business.
Create a workplace that values, improves and energizes people. 
Deal fairly with society and value harmony with the environment.

Action Guidelines
Develop ourselves so that we may give our personal best.
Trust, challenge and improve one another. 
Nurture a welcoming, open spirit.

Corporate Slogan
Excellence by nature

Tadanobu Nagumo (left)
Chairman and CEO and Representative Director
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F I N A N C I A L  H I G H L I G H T S
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the nine months ended December 31, 2011, and the years ended March 31, 2011 and 2010.
Yokohama shifted in 2011 to calendar-year fiscal accounting, from April-to-March fiscal accounting. That resulted in a one-time-only nine-month fiscal period ended December 31, 2011. 
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We posted our second consecutive year of record 
sales and earnings in 2013, with net sales of ¥601.6 
billion, operating income of ¥56.6 billion, and net 
income of ¥35.0 billion. What is more, we are ahead 
of schedule in achieving the Phase III (2012–2014) 
target in our Grand Design 100 medium-term 
management plan. Our chief quantitative targets for 

Phase III are to achieve aggregate three-year net sales 
of ¥1.8 trillion and aggregate three-year operating 
income of ¥150 billion. Our two-year totals for earnings 
exceed two-thirds of those three-year figures, and we 
will do everything possible to maintain our momentum 
in 2014 and thereby exceed the Phase III targets.

A  W O R D  F R O M  T H E  P R E S I D E N T

Growing Globally 
as a Company 
Rich in Culture
Hikomitsu Noji, President and Representative Director

Keeping phase III of Grand Design 100 on track with two consecutive years of record sales and earnings

Strengthening our tire business is fundamental to 
attaining the targets of our Grand Design 100 
medium-term management plan. And we are therefore 
moving to increase our annual production capacity to 
100 million tires by 2020, from about 63 million at 
2013 year-end. 
 As described elsewhere, we inaugurated Grand 
Design 100 in 2006 as a framework for achieving 
annual net sales of ¥1 trillion, annual operating 

income of ¥100 billion, and—thus—operating return 
on sales of 10% by 2017. The Lehman Shock of 
September 2008 changed the market outlook 
fundamentally and has obliged us to set back our 
horizon for the Grand Design 100 sales target to 
2020 or later. We abide by the 2017 target for operating 
income, however, and are therefore aiming to attain our 
target for operating return on sales ahead of schedule.

Aiming for production capacity of 100 million tires a year by 2020

Upgrading our appeal to automakers will be crucial in 
strengthening our tire business. We are among a mere 
handful of tire manufacturers worldwide who possess 
the technological capabilities necessary for original 
equipment contracts. Our continuing success in winning 
fitments on premium-grade vehicle models underlines 

our technological attainment in that respect, and 
automakers’ acknowledgement of that attainment 
enhances our appeal to customers in the replacement 
tire market. Expanding business in original equipment 
tires yields the additional benefit of stabilizing output 
at our plants.

Reinforcing our presence in original equipment tires

Since becoming president, I have been calling on our 
people in production, logistics, and sales to find ways 
to operate without holding excess inventory. We need 
to identify the minimum amount of in-process stock 
necessary to keep our value chain flowing smoothly, 
and we need to avoid holding any more than that 
amount. That means ensuring that we produce only 
the amounts necessary to replace the amounts sold. 

 What I am describing is “just-in-time” management. 
It reduces costs in warehousing, in management, and 
in shipping. Our production operations already operate 
on a highly just-in-time basis. But we need to do a lot 
better in our logistics and sales operations. We will 
step up our efforts to raise awareness of the need for 
just-in-time management and to translate that 
awareness into efficiency gains and cost reductions.

Shaping an inventory-free business model

The Yokohama production network for tires comprises 
12 plants in seven nations, and 2 additions to that 
network are under construction. Those plants serve 
automakers, fleet operators, consumers, and other 
customers worldwide. Clearly, we need to link our 
production, logistics, and sales in ways that maximize 

efficiency and minimize delivery lead times. And I 
will spare no effort in tackling that challenge. Our 
efforts will include measures for optimizing operations 
in each nation and region and for optimizing the 
interaction among our operations globally. 

Deploying tire supply chains globally
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Our technological alliance with Kumho exemplifies a 
broader commitment to furthering our strategic 
interests and thereby fulfilling stakeholder expectations. 
Achieving business growth and increasing our corporate 
value are the most direct ways of fulfilling the 
expectations of our shareholders and our other 
stakeholders. And we will remain alert to 
opportunities to further those aims through alliances 
and through mergers and acquisitions. 

 Reciprocity is fundamental to interaction with 
other companies in the global marketplace. We 
therefore discontinued in March 2014 a “poison pill” 
provision adopted in 2007 to prevent unwelcome 
acquisitions of our shares. Our greatest assets at 
Yokohama are our culture and our brands. We need 
to be open to any and all possibilities for exercising 
those assets to their fullest potential in win-win 
relationships.

Being alert to opportunities for furthering our strategic interests through alliances and through mergers 
and acquisitions

We have positioned the fulfilling of corporate social 
responsibility as a growth-strategy priority in Grand 
Design 100. Quantifying the fiscal benefits of fulfilling 
corporate social responsibility can be difficult on a 
short-term basis, but demonstrating a strong social 

commitment is unquestionably beneficial to long-term 
corporate value. Our customers among the world’s 
automakers are sensitive to the importance of corporate 
social responsibility, and we need to exhibit a 
comparable sensitivity.

Increasing corporate value by fulfilling our corporate social responsibility

A mounting commitment to fulfilling corporate social 
responsibility is readily evident in our recent activity 
in connection with environmental protection, personal 
welfare, and corporate governance. For example, 
avoiding any output of landfill waste has become an 
obvious criterion in building new plants. But we are 
reaching beyond that criterion and insisting on 
achieving new levels of environmental harmony with 
each new plant that we build. 
 Personal welfare is also a mounting emphasis, 
meanwhile, in our management stance. That means 
accommodating employees’ personal needs, as well as 
serving our host communities through public-interest 

activities. We are upgrading our employee support 
with new and expanded provisions for maternity leave, 
parental leave, and geriatric parental care. 
 In regard to corporate governance, the International 
Organization for Standardization’s ISO regimens 
provide solid frameworks for systematizing oversight 
functions. We are employing those frameworks to 
streamline and speed our internal auditing. 
 The objective perspective of independent 
directors buttresses, meanwhile, the oversight function 
of the Board of Directors. And we named a second 
independent member to our Board of Directors at our 
general meeting of shareholders in March 2014. 

Tackling new measures for fortifying our approach to environmental protection, personal welfare, 
and corporate governance

I want Yokohama to be a company that is rich in 
culture. We can and should become a company whose 
name and brand conjure strong associations with 
excellent products, superior technology, and a positive 
social interaction. Fostering that kind of strong corporate 
personality takes time, patience, and determination. 

  Thus have we served as the official tire supplier 
for the Macau Grand Prix annually since 1983. That 
has meant maintaining our support for the race through 
fiscal good times and bad. And that long-term 
commitment has nurtured lasting value in terms of 
positive perceptions of our company and products. 

Nurturing Yokohama culture and building a vibrant brand

I am equally committed to strengthening our R&D 
capabilities, and that explains the alliance that we 
concluded with the Republic of Korea’s Kumho Tire 
in February 2014. Competition is escalating in the 
global tire industry in technological development for 
addressing such themes as minimizing environmental 
impact. Undertaking the R&D necessary to compete 

with our industry’s largest manufacturers requires 
immense expenditures. R&D spending as a percentage 
of net sales averages between 2% and 3% in the tire 
industry. Sharing R&D findings with Kumho will 
enable us to match the R&D results of companies 
twice our size.

Strengthening our R&D capabilities through an alliance with Kumho Tire

“We are among a mere handful of tire 
manufacturers worldwide who possess 

the technological capabilities necessary 

for original equipment contracts.”

“We will continue working to imbue our 
organization with culture while pursuing 

our global growth strategy in accordance 

with Grand Design 100.”

We will continue working to imbue our organization with culture while pursuing our global growth strategy in 
accordance with Grand Design 100. And I am grateful for the understanding and goodwill of our stakeholders as 
we address the challenges and opportunities that lie ahead.
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Grand Design 100
Medium-Term Management Plan
Our blueprint for growth is Grand Design 100, a medium-term management plan 
that we launched in 2006. That plan culminates in 2017, our corporate centennial, 
and comprises four three-year phases. Phase III began in 2012. 

To Mark the Yokohama Centennial in 2017

Long-Term Financial Targets

Basic Policy

Grand Design 100 Vision and Basic Policy

Financial Targets in Phase III of Grand Design 100

•Deliver the best products at competitive prices and on time
•Assert world-class strengths in technologies for protecting 
  the environment
•Foster a customer-oriented corporate culture that honors rigorous 

standards of corporate ethics

Net sales Operating income Operating return 
on sales

¥1 trillion ¥100 billion 10%

Evoke a distinctive global identity in building corporate value and 
in building a strong market presence

•Changes in the business environment are likely to delay until 2019 or 2020 our 
attainment of our sales target of ¥1 trillion.

•We expect to attain on schedule our operating income target of ¥100 billion and 
to attain ahead of schedule our 10% target for operating return on sales.

PhaseⅠGD10

Renewed growth focus

Phas
eⅡ

Pha
seⅢ

Pha
seⅣ

400.4
451.9

517.3
557.8

630.0

850.0

1,000.0

100.0

60.0

26.8
12.8

21.923.2

2002 2005 2008 2011 2014 2017 2019–
2020

¥ billion

Net sales

Robust and Responsive Growth

Operating
income

Financial Results and Targets in Regard to 

Grand Design 100 Indicators

Our cumulative, three-year targets in Phase III are to achieve net sales of ¥1.8 

trillion and operating income of ¥150 billion. We are well on the way toward 

achieving those targets with two consecutive years of record sales and earnings.

Net sales

Operating income

Operating return on sales

¥630.0

¥60.0

9.5%

2014 Aggregate

Targets for Selected Financial Indicators in 2014

More than 9%

Less than ¥220.0 billion

More than 1

Less than 1

Operating return on assets1

Interest-bearing debt

Asset turnover

Debt/equity ratio2

Net sales

Operating income

Operating return on sales

¥559.7

¥49.7

8.9%

¥601.6

¥56.6

9.4%

Financial Results: 2012 and 2013

(Billions of yen, percent)

1. Operating income/total assets
2. Interest-bearing debt/net assets

¥1,800.0

¥150.0

8.3%

Years ended December 31; billions of yen, percent

(As announced in February 2012)

Basic Approach in Phase III of Grand Design 100

Aiming to attain the overall Phase III goals, we 
are tackling concrete measures for achieving 
growth in our Tire Group and Multiple Business 
Group, for asserting technological strengths, for 

reinforcing our corporate foundation, and for 
fulfilling our corporate social responsibility. 
Here is a summary of our growth strategy in our 
Tire Group and our Multiple Business Group.

Fortify our operations to generate a strong cash flow, and invest heavily in expanding production capacity, especially in tires

Expand our supply capacity to keep up with demand in 
fast-growing economies

Pursue operating return on sales of 10% by strengthening our 
cost competitiveness and our branding

Growth Strategy: Tire Group

2011 2014 2017

59 66

Phase

Sites in China, India, the United States, and Latin America

Annual production capacity
 (Million tires)

Phase Phase

38% 45%

86
58% Overseas 

share

New tire plant candidates 

Philippine, Thai, Vietnamese, and Russian plantsPlant expansion candidates

+7 million

+20 million

Planned Increases in Tire Production CapacityAsserting a Distinctive Presence in the Global 
Marketplace

• Japan: Bolster our competitiveness by strengthening our 
 capabilities in technology and in product development
• Overseas: Expand our supply capacity in support of 
 profitable growth

Expanding Supply Capacity Greatly

• Increase our annual production capacity by about 7 million tires
 during the three years of Phase III, principally in Russia, China,
 the Philippines, and Thailand
• Allocate ¥140.0 billion to capital spending in Phase III to 
 increase our annual production capacity by 20 million tires 
 in Phase IV

Deploying High-Value-Added Products Globally

• Consumer tires: Increase the global momentum for our 
ADVAN flagship brand for high-performance products, our BluEarth 
brand for fuel-saving tires, our iceGUARD brand for winter 
category tires, and our GEOLANDAR brand for sport-utility 
vehicle tires, and raise our market profile by winning factory 
fitments on globally prominent vehicle models

Growth Strategy: Multiple Business Group
Asserting Market Leadership in Products Based on 
Three Core Technologies

• Create market-leading products based on the three core
  technologies of carrying, affixing, and buffering
• Realign our manufacturing operations in Japan and continue to
 expand our manufacturing overseas

Cultivating Business Opportunities

• Generate business opportunities by applying and combining
 advanced telecommunications and measurement technologies
 innovatively

• Commercial tires: Increase sales and production capacity 
in large tires for off-the-road equipment, especially radial tires in 
sizes of 49 inches and larger; broaden our offerings in 
high-functionality tires for trucks and buses, such as ultra wide 
base tires; and expand our market presence in retreaded tires

Our Three Core Technologies

Carrying

Water tanks

Affixing

Construction sealants

Window sealants

Hard coatings

Buffering

Rubber bearings

Marine fenders

Wheelchair cushions

High-pressure hoses

Conveyor belts

(As announced in February 2012)

¥595.0

¥50.0

8.4%

2013

¥575.0

¥40.0

7.0%

2012

2012 2013
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ontinuing efforts to expand our tire production 
capacity have been an unwavering emphasis under 

our Grand Design 100 medium-term management 
plan. When we adopted that plan in 2006, authoritative 
projections called for average annual growth of 100 
million tires in global demand. And we were and are 
determined to serve the growth in demand—especially 
the surging growth in the world’s emerging economies. 
 We are allocating an unprecedented ¥140 billion 
to investment in expanded production capacity in Phase 
III of Grand Design 100—2012 to 2014. In 2012 and 
2013, we expanded capacity at our plants in the Philippines, 
Russia, and Thailand and built new plants in China and 
India. And we are on track to achieve our annual capacity 
to 67,640,000 tires by the end of Phase III. That will 
be a three-year increase of 8,250,000 tires—1,250,000 
more than our original plan. 

 We are also undertaking investment aimed at 
increasing our production capacity further in Phase IV 
of Grand Design 100—2015 to 2017. That will include 
additional expansion at our Philippine and Russian plants 
and the construction of a new plant in the United States. 
Those projects will increase our global production 
capacity to 86 million tires a year by 2017. 
 Our basic policy in Grand Design 100 calls for 
delivering the best products at competitive prices and 
on time. Locating production capacity in principal 
markets will enable us to optimize our product development 
for local needs, strengthen our cost competitiveness, 
and minimize delivery lead times. 
 A strong manufacturing presence in each principal 
market will thus fortify our marketing, as well as 
bolstering our supply capabilities. That was evident in 
the outpouring of customer delight that accompanied 
the announcements of our plant construction projects 
in Mississippi and Russia. And those projects have 
occasioned new and expanded supply contracts with 
customers in the United States and in Russia.
 We will continue working to translate expanded 
production capacity into growth in sales and market 
share. That will include exploring possibilities in 
South America and in Europe, where we do not yet 
have a manufacturing presence.

S P E C I A L  F E AT U R E _ 1

Expanding Our Global Tire Production Capacity to 
86 Million Tires a Year by 2017

First-phase expansion work at our passenger car tire 
plant in the Philippines got under way in 2011, and 
the new capacity went on line in January 2014. That 
has increased the plant’s annual production capacity 
to 10 million tires, from 7 million. A second phase of 
expansion work, which began in 2013, will add 

annual capacity for 2.5 million tires. That new 
capacity will begin to go on line in autumn 2014 and 
will reach full operation in 2015. Additional 
expansion will increase the Philippine plant’s annual 
production capacity to 17 million tires.

Expansion of Philippine production capacity to 17 million tires a year

The expansion work under way at our Russian plant 
will increase the annual production capacity there to 
1.6 million tires, from 1.4 million, and the expanded 
capacity will go into full operation in autumn 2014. 

Our sales volume in Russia has reached three million 
tires a year, and we will expand our local production 
further to support our growth market presence. 

Expansion of Russian production capacity to 1.6 million tires a year

Indian demand for tires is growing rapidly amid 
population and economic expansion. With an eye to 
increasing our market presence in India, we are 
building a passenger car tire plant there. We are 

building the plant in the state of Haryana, which is 
adjacent to the National Capital Territory of Delhi. 
It will begin operation in July 2014 and will have an 
initial production capacity of 400,000 tires a year. 

Construction of a plant in India

Our new passenger car tire plant in Suzhou, China, 
will begin operation in 2014. It is adjacent to our 
Suzhou plant that produces truck and bus tires. The 
passenger car tire plant has an initial production 
capacity of one million tires a year, and we plan to 

increase that capacity to six million tires a year by the 
end of 2017. Our production there centers on 
fuel-efficient BluEarth tires for China’s replacement 
market, and we also plan to supply tires from the 
plant to automakers in China.

Construction of a plant in Suzhou, China

We are building a plant in Mississippi that will begin 
producing truck and bus tires in October 2015. Our 

plans call for output at the plant to reach one million 
tires a year in 2018.

Expanding Tire Production Capacity

Passenger Car Tires

Outlook for continued expansion in the US 
tire market

The United States is a crucially important market 
for truck and bus tires, and the US market is 
poised for continuing growth amid economic 
expansion. We serve that market with products 
that feature superior technology, and the made-in- 
USA tires from our Mississippi plant will enable 
us to assert that technological edge more broadly. 

Growth in truck and bus tires driven by a 
reputation for dependable performance
Decades of conscientious marketing have built a 
strong reputation for the Yokohama name in the 

US market for truck and bus tires. Multiple 
retreadings are fundamental to successful tire 
programs for fleets in the United States, and 
superior retreadability is a big part of the appeal 
of our tires there. We posted strong growth in 
sales and market share in the US market for 
truck and bus tires in 
2013, and our new 
plant in Mississippi 
will support further 
gains in US 
business.

We secured a foothold in the large-mine 
sector in 2013 with the launch of 49-inch 
radial tires. Those tires are for rigid dump 
trucks employed in large mines and in 
large-scale civil engineering projects. 
 The massive dump trucks that operate in 
large mines require tires of superior load 
efficiency, and only a handful of tire 
manufacturers make radial tires of 49-inch 

size and larger for those trucks. Entering that 
product sector is therefore an opportunity to 
showcase our strengths in tire technology. 
And we will promote our large radial tires 
vigorously in natural resource–producing 
nations. We are developing 51-inch radial 
tires, which will help expand our market share 
in the large-mine sector.

Yuji Goto
Director and Senior Managing Corporate Officer,
Chief Tire Production Officer, Head of Tire Production Div., Head of Hiratsuka Factory

Measures Under Way to Expand Tire Production Capacity
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Expanding Tire Production Capacity

Passenger Car Tires
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Yuji Goto
Director and Senior Managing Corporate Officer,
Chief Tire Production Officer, Head of Tire Production Div., Head of Hiratsuka Factory

Measures Under Way to Expand Tire Production Capacity
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Business outside Japan accounts for a growing 
proportion of sales in the Multiple Business Group. 
That proportion, just 23% in fiscal 2007 (April 2006 
to March 2007), had grown to 40% in fiscal 2013 
(January to December 2013). Our plans call for 
increasing that proportion to 50% by 2017, and we 
are tackling diverse measures to achieve that target.

S P E C I A L  F E AT U R E _ 2

Overseas business as a percentage of sales in the Multiple Business Group

he Multiple Business Group has an important role 
to play in achieving the culminating sales target of 

¥1 trillion in our company’s Grand Design 100 
medium-term management plan. Our group presently 
generates about 20% of net sales. In maintaining at 
least that percentage contribution, we therefore need 
to increase our sales to ¥200 billion. Accomplishing 
that increase will depend on achieving especially 
strong growth in overseas markets. 
 We have adopted the target of increasing the 
overseas percentage of our sales to 50% by 2017. 
Yokohama is a global leader in such product sectors 

as pneumatic marine fenders, marine hoses, 
high-pressure hoses, conveyor belts, and sealants and 
adhesives. Measures for strengthening our overseas 
business in those product sectors have included 
establishing a sales company in Singapore in May 
2013. That is the Multiple Business Group’s third 
overseas sales subsidiary, joining counterparts in 
Germany and in China. 
 Expanding our global production network is 
another way that we are strengthening our overseas 
business in the Multiple Business Group. In 
impending additions to that network, we will open a 
Chinese plant for high-pressure hoses in 2014 and are 
preparing to build our first overseas plant for 
pneumatic marine fenders and marine hoses in 
Indonesia. We are stepping up our efforts in R&D, 
meanwhile, to adapt our products responsively to 
needs in each region.
  I regard localization as a key to strengthening 
our overseas business, and I am therefore emphasizing 
an approach that I call “local, native, direct.” That 
means promoting local managers to positions of 
responsibility, conducting our business in the local 
language, and working directly with our customers in 
each region. Japanese expatriates still run most of our 
overseas operations, but we will transfer a growing 
range of responsibilities to local managers and 
employees in such functions as sales and technical 
support. That will help us respond more effectively to 
customer expectations and will thereby contribute 
toward achieving our goal of generating 50% of sales 
in overseas markets.

Strengthening our marketing in each region through 
a local, native, direct approach

The establishment of a regional sales company in Singapore
We established Yokohama Industrial Products 
Asia-Pacific Pte. Ltd. in Singapore in May 2013. That 
company spearheads our marketing of pneumatic 
marine fenders, marine hoses, replacement 
high-pressure hoses, and conveyor belts in Southeast 
Asia, Australia, and India, where we anticipate 
continuing growth in demand. Yokohama Industrial 
Products Asia-Pacific gives us a platform for 
delivering products in a more timely manner and for 
upgrading our after-sales support. Our people there 
are working to identify customer needs in each 
market and to provide feedback that will help our 
R&D team optimize products for those needs. We aim 
to double annual sales at Yokohama Industrial 
Products Asia-Pacific by 2017.

Growth Stratagems for Core Products    
• High-pressure hoses
We produce high-pressure hoses, primarily for 
automobiles and construction equipment, at plants in 
the United States, Thailand, China, and Taiwan. 
Those plants have traditionally supplied hoses mainly 
to Japanese-owned manufacturing operations, but we 
are working to broaden our marketing scope by 
cultivating business in replacement hoses. That 
includes developing business relationships with 
companies that produce hose assemblies. It also 
includes working in R&D to adapt our products 
responsively to customer needs.
• Marine products
Pneumatic marine fenders and marine hoses are a central 
emphasis in our measures for increasing overseas sales 
in the Multiple Business Group. We are the world’s 
largest supplier of pneumatic marine fenders and the 
second-largest supplier of marine hoses. In 2013, we 
posted record sales of marine hoses as rising prices for 
crude oil drove demand upward. 
 Demand is poised to continue growing in the 
marine products sectors that we serve, and we are 
therefore preparing to build a plant to produce 
pneumatic marine fenders and marine hoses on the 
Indonesian island of Batam. Our plans call for that 
plant to begin operation in the second half of 2015. 
We will use our expanded production capacity to 
strengthen our market presence in Asian nations and 
in the Middle East.
• Conveyor belts
Surging activity in natural resources development 
around the world is spawning demand for conveyor 
belts, and suppliers of conveyor belts are competing 

aggressively for business. Demand for conveyor belts 
is especially large in China and in the United States, 
and we serve that demand through local production and 
sales companies. In China, we established Shandong 
Yokohama Rubber Industrial Products Co., Ltd., as a 
joint venture with a local partner in 2006 to produce 
and market conveyor belts. That company has become a 
strategic pillar of our business in conveyor belts, generating 
one-half of our overseas sales in this product sector. 
 In the United States, we established a conveyor 
belt division in 2010 at our hose-manufacturing subsidiary 
Yokohama Industries Americas Inc. (formerly YH America, 
Inc.). Production and sales through that division have 
reinforced our foothold in the North American market. 
 Our extensive line of conveyor belts features 
high-value-added products that offer superior durability 
and energy efficiency. Also characterizing our products 
in this sector is our responsiveness in adapting 
specifications to local needs. Building on those strengths, 
we will strive to expand our market presence in large 
mineral-producing nations, such as Australia, Indonesia, 
and South American nations.
• Sealants and adhesives
We produce automotive sealants in the United States, 
Thailand, and China, as well as Japan, and supply 
them to automakers and to manufacturers of 
automotive components. In response to growing 
demand, we expanded our US production capacity 
for automotive sealants in 2013 and are considering 
expansion at our Thai and Chinese plants in 2014 to 
respond to growing vehicle production in Southeast 
Asia and elsewhere in Asia. 
 Coatings for mobile phones and for photovoltaic 
panels are a growth sector for us in sealants and 
adhesives, and we are developing new products to 
appeal to our broadening global clientele in this product 
category. We have marketed our mobile phone and 
solar cell coatings in China and the Republic of Korea 
since 2012, and those nations, along with Taiwan, are 
the focus of our efforts to increase overseas sales in 
coating products.
• Aircraft fixtures and components
Demand for commercial airliners continues to grow, 
fueled by the emergence of low-cost carriers around 
the world. That trend occasioned growth in orders for 
our lavatory modules for installation in new aircraft. 
We also posted growth in sales of replacement modules 
as airlines refitted in-service aircraft to enhance their 
appeal to passengers. Winning increased business in 
replacement modules is an emphasis in our growth 
strategy in aircraft fixtures and components.

Measures under way to promote growth in overseas business 

Takao Oishi
Director and Senior Managing Corporate Officer,
President of Multiple Business

Aiming for 50:50 Balance between Japanese and 
Overseas Sales in the Multiple Business Group
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Passenger car tires

Truck and bus tires

Off-the-road tires

Motor sports

Our marketing strategy in passenger car tires centers on four global brands: 
ADVAN, our flagship brand for high-performance products; BluEarth, our 
showcase line of fuel-efficient tires; iceGUARD winter category tires; and 
GEOLANDAR tires for sport-utility vehicles. That strategy supports sales growth 
while reinforcing the association of the Yokohama name with high performance.

We produce high-quality off-the-road tires at a dedicated plant in Japan. In 2013, 
we commenced full-scale marketing of 49-inch radial off-the-road tires. That has 
fortified our presence in the growing market for large off-the-road tires for mining 
equipment. We have bolstered our supply capacity in off-the-road tires, meanwhile, 
through an “offtake” agreement with a Chinese tire manufacturer. Our Chinese 
partner supplies us with off-the-road tires to market under the Yokohama brand, 
and we supply our partner with related technology. 

Participating in motor sports heightens awareness of the Yokohama name and 
strengthens our branding. We supply tires for international racing series, such as 
the FIA World Touring Car Championship series, and for local racing events in 
nations worldwide. In addition, we have entered electric vehicles since 2009 in 
the tortuous Pikes Peak International Hill Climb on the eponymous Colorado 
mountain. That participation is part of our continuing development work on tires 
for electric vehicles.

In truck and bus tires, our product line extends from tires for light trucks to tires 
for large truck trailers. Our strategy in this sector focuses on products that feature 
superior fuel economy and that accommodate multiple retreadings and on 
high-value-added products, such as ultra wide base tires.
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¥122.1 6.1UPbillion % 67.9UP %billion

Sales

¥96.9 5.5UPbillion %

Sales

Industrial Products

¥10.6
Operating income

51.2UP %billion¥7.7
Operating income

High-pressure hoses

Industrial materials

Sealants and adhesives

The Yokohama line of industrial materials encompasses marine hoses, pneumatic 
marine fenders, conveyor belts, antiseismic products, highway joints and other 
products. Yokohama is the leading name worldwide in pneumatic marine fenders, 
and we are the world’s second-largest supplier of marine hoses.

We develop sealants, adhesives, and coatings for diverse applications. In 
construction sealants and automotive window sealants, we are the largest supplier 
in Japan. We have also developed coatings for applications in growth markets in 
electronic equipment, and we are building a strong market position in coatings for 
smartphones, for light-emitting diode displays, and for other products.

Our global manufacturing and marketing network for high-pressure hoses 
supplies hydraulic hoses for automobiles, construction equipment, and machine 
tools and metal joints for hydraulic systems. We are the largest supplier of 
high-pressure hoses for construction equipment in Japan. And our subsidiary 
Yokohama Industries Americas Inc. (formerly YH America, Inc.) is the US leader 
in hoses for automotive power steering systems.

Multiple Business
group

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE in 2013
Operating income in the Tire Group increased 6.1% 
in 2013, to ¥46.0 billion, on a 7.9% increase in sales, 
to ¥479.5 billion. We posted overall sales growth in 
Japan, bolstered by gains in original equipment tires 
and in replacement tires. The Japanese sales gain in 
original equipment tires occurred despite a decline in 
unit volume, attributable to declining vehicle production. 
Our Japanese sales of replacement tires benefited from 
heavy snowfall, which boosted demand for our studless 
tires, and from successful new-product launches. In 
overseas markets, sales turned upward in North America 
and in China, though demand slumped in Europe, 
including Russia. Profitability in the Tire Group 
benefited from a decline in raw material prices and 
from the weakening of the yen.

Japan: original equipment tires
The growth in our Japanese sales of original equipment 
tires reflected vigorous demand for low-fuel-consumption 
vehicles. We serve that sector with a large range of 
tire sizes. Also contributing to our sales gain in original 
equipment tires was our success in winning fitments on 
additional vehicle models. Those positive factors enabled 
us to overcome a slight decline in unit sales volume. 
That decline resulted from a decline in vehicle production 
in Japan. Undercutting Japanese vehicle production were 
the termination of government incentives for purchases 
of fuel-saving, low-emission vehicles and Japanese 
automakers’ continuing shift of production abroad.

Japan: replacement tires
In Japan’s replacement tire market, our sales increased 
in value and in unit volume. Softening prices 
occasioned escalating competition, but we achieved 
strong sales of summer tires and posted record unit 
volume in studless tires amid heavy snows. We also 
achieved a sales gain in truck and bus tires. Recovery 
work in areas damaged by the 2011 Great East Japan 
Earthquake contributed to 
demand for truck tires. 
 Highlighting our product 
launches were two additions to 
our ADVAN global flagship 
brand: the ADVAN Sport 
V105, for high-performance, 
premium passenger car models, 
and the ADVAN NEOVA 
AD08R, street sports tires. We 
augmented our BluEarth line of 
fuel-efficient tires, meanwhile, 

with the BluEarth-1 EF20. That tire secured the top 
designations for low rolling resistance and wet grip 
under Japan’s tire-labeling system. We also fortified 
our BluEarth line of tires with an upgraded version of 
the BluEarth-A, which boasts the top labeling 
designation for wet grip. Another product launch of 
note was our ECOS ES31, a standard fuel-efficient tire.

Overseas
Our sales outside Japan increased in both value and 
unit volume in replacement tires, and our overseas 
business also increased in original equipment tires, 
driven by growth in fitments on European premium 
vehicle models. Business was 
strong in North America and 
China, but our performance was 
weak in Russia and in some other 
markets on account of a lagging 
recovery in demand and 
escalating price competition. 
Product additions to our global 
flagship ADVAN line, the ADVAN 
Sport V105 and the ADVAN 
NEOVA AD08R, earned high 
regard in the marketplace and 
posted strong sales. 

BUSINESS OUTLOOK for 2014
We project that operating income in our tire operations 
will increase 13.0% in 2014, to ¥52.0 billion, on a 9.1% 
sales increase, to ¥523.0 billion. Accompanying those 
projections is our awareness of the likelihood of 
escalating competition, of the risk of adverse developments 
in raw material prices and in the exchange value of the 
yen, and of a continued decline in unit sales in Japan’s 
original equipment market. 
 Underlying our growth projections is the 
expectation of solid growth in replacement tires in 
overseas markets. We anticipate continued growth in 
North America and in China and renewed growth in 
Europe, supported by economic recovery. We are 
counting on rising capacity utilization rates at our tire 
plants to contribute to heightened profitability. 
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Multiple Business
group

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE in 2013
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We project that operating income in our tire operations 
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sales increase, to ¥523.0 billion. Accompanying those 
projections is our awareness of the likelihood of 
escalating competition, of the risk of adverse developments 
in raw material prices and in the exchange value of the 
yen, and of a continued decline in unit sales in Japan’s 
original equipment market. 
 Underlying our growth projections is the 
expectation of solid growth in replacement tires in 
overseas markets. We anticipate continued growth in 
North America and in China and renewed growth in 
Europe, supported by economic recovery. We are 
counting on rising capacity utilization rates at our tire 
plants to contribute to heightened profitability. 
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Aircraft fixtures and components

Our business in aircraft 
fixtures and components 
centers on lavatory modules 
for commercial aircraft. It 
also includes wastewater 
tanks and other components. 

Golf equipment

We market a full range of 
golf equipment under our 
PRGR brand. In recent 
years, we have begun 
moving to cultivate business 
in golf equipment beyond 
Japan, starting with the 
Republic of Korea, China, 
Taiwan, and Southeast Asian 
nations.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE in 2013
Operating income in industrial products increased 
51.2% in 2013, to ¥7.7 billion, on a 5.5% increase in 
sales, to ¥96.9 billion. Leading the sales growth were 
gains in automotive hoses, in marine hoses and pneumatic 
marine fenders, and in conveyor belts. Profitability 
benefited additionally from a decline in raw material 
prices and from the weakening of the yen.

High-pressure hoses
Sales and operating income increased in high-pressure 
hoses. Business in the construction equipment sector 
expanded in Japan but declined overseas. Domestic 
sales declined in the first half of the year on account 
of declining exports of construction equipment but 
increased in the second half as demand recovered. 
Overseas sales were weak throughout the year on 
account of slumping demand in China and in Southeast 
Asia. Sales of automotive hoses were robust, driven by 
demand generated by expanding vehicle production in 
the United States. 

Industrial materials
We also posted growth in sales and in operating 
income in industrial materials. Our sales of marine 
hoses reached a record high amid surging prices for 
crude oil, and our sales also increased in pneumatic 
marine fenders. Japanese sales of conveyor belts 
increased as we won orders associated with rebuilding 
work in areas damaged by the 2011 Great East Japan 
Earthquake and as we expanded our market share with 
steel manufacturers. Overseas sales of conveyor belts 
were flat, but profitability increased on account of the 
weakening yen.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE in 2013
Operating income in other products increased 136.1% 
in 2013, to ¥3.0 billion, on an 8.5% increase in sales, 
to ¥25.2 billion.

Aircraft fixtures and components
Sales and operating income increased in aircraft fixtures 
and components. Business was especially vigorous in 
lavatory modules for commercial aircraft, supported 
by a recovery in demand and the weakening of the yen. 
We also posted sales growth in replacement components 
for aircraft in the government sector.

Golf equipment
Our business in golf equipment also generated growth 
in sales and in operating income. Demand turned upward 
in the Japanese market for golf equipment in 2013, partly 
in reflection of the government’s economic-stimulus 
measures. And we achieved strong performances in both 
sales value and unit volume with our iD nabla RED golf 
clubs for “executive-set” golfers, launched in April, and 
with the NEW egg addition to our egg line of golf clubs, 
introduced in September. 
 In overseas markets, we continued working to cultivate 
business in China and in the Republic of Korea. That 

included opening our first directly 
owned Korean store for golf 
equipment. However, our overseas 
business in golf equipment was weak  
amid stagnating demand in China 
and in the Republic of Korea.

Sealants and adhesives
Sales and operating income declined in sealants and 
adhesives. We posted strong sales growth in 
automotive window sealants, bolstered by market 
recovery in North America and in China, but sales 
were weak in construction sealants amid a weak 
recovery in demand. Escalating price competition also 
weighed on our sales and earnings performance in 
sealants and adhesives. 

BUSINESS OUTLOOK for 2014
We project that operating income in industrial products 
will increase 2.7% in 2014, to ¥7.9 billion, on a 2.2% 
increase in sales, to ¥99.0 billion. Our Japanese business 
in hoses for construction equipment is poised to continue 
growing amid continued growth in demand. Demand 
for automotive hoses appears likely to be flat, however, 
in North America, and market trends remain unfavorable 
in Southeast Asia for construction equipment hoses 
and for automotive hoses. 
 In conveyor belts, we expect Japanese demand to 
be basically unchanged from the previous year. We 
anticipate strong demand for marine hoses and for 
pneumatic marine fenders as crude oil prices remain 
high, and we will promote our products in those 
categories vigorously, especially in Asia and Oceania. 
Demand for sealants and adhesives appears likely to 
be basically unchanged from the previous year in the 
construction sector and in the automotive sector, but 
we will aim to increase sales by launching new products 
and by strengthening our Japanese sales companies. 
 The medium-range outlook for Japanese demand 
is promising as preparations get under way for the 
2020 Tokyo Olympics and as rebuilding continues 
apace in areas damaged by the Great East Japan 
Earthquake. We will strive to make the most of 
demand and to maintain our large market share in 
high-pressure hoses, in industrial materials, and in 
sealants and adhesives by developing competitive new 
products. We will upgrade our sales network and will 
reach out to customers with value-added product 
proposals through the marketing company Yokohama 
Industrial Products Japan Co., Ltd.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK for 2014
We project that operating income in other products 
will increase 4.9% in 2014, to ¥3.1 billion, on a 0.9% 
decline in sales, to ¥25.0 billion. In aircraft fixtures 
and components, we will work to raise profitability by 
raising prices and by raising productivity while 
striving for sales growth in replacement items. We 
expect the ongoing economic recovery in the United 
States to stimulate demand for commercial aircraft 
and, thus, for our lavatory modules and other 
products. 
 In golf equipment, we will aim for growth in sales 
and market share by promoting new products in our 
main product lines, PRGR iD nabla and egg. And we will 
work to improve profitability through cost reductions.

Marine hose Pneumatic marine fender
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account of slumping demand in China and in Southeast 
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demand generated by expanding vehicle production in 
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increased as we won orders associated with rebuilding 
work in areas damaged by the 2011 Great East Japan 
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were flat, but profitability increased on account of the 
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and components. Business was especially vigorous in 
lavatory modules for commercial aircraft, supported 
by a recovery in demand and the weakening of the yen. 
We also posted sales growth in replacement components 
for aircraft in the government sector.

Golf equipment
Our business in golf equipment also generated growth 
in sales and in operating income. Demand turned upward 
in the Japanese market for golf equipment in 2013, partly 
in reflection of the government’s economic-stimulus 
measures. And we achieved strong performances in both 
sales value and unit volume with our iD nabla RED golf 
clubs for “executive-set” golfers, launched in April, and 
with the NEW egg addition to our egg line of golf clubs, 
introduced in September. 
 In overseas markets, we continued working to cultivate 
business in China and in the Republic of Korea. That 

included opening our first directly 
owned Korean store for golf 
equipment. However, our overseas 
business in golf equipment was weak  
amid stagnating demand in China 
and in the Republic of Korea.

Sealants and adhesives
Sales and operating income declined in sealants and 
adhesives. We posted strong sales growth in 
automotive window sealants, bolstered by market 
recovery in North America and in China, but sales 
were weak in construction sealants amid a weak 
recovery in demand. Escalating price competition also 
weighed on our sales and earnings performance in 
sealants and adhesives. 
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We project that operating income in industrial products 
will increase 2.7% in 2014, to ¥7.9 billion, on a 2.2% 
increase in sales, to ¥99.0 billion. Our Japanese business 
in hoses for construction equipment is poised to continue 
growing amid continued growth in demand. Demand 
for automotive hoses appears likely to be flat, however, 
in North America, and market trends remain unfavorable 
in Southeast Asia for construction equipment hoses 
and for automotive hoses. 
 In conveyor belts, we expect Japanese demand to 
be basically unchanged from the previous year. We 
anticipate strong demand for marine hoses and for 
pneumatic marine fenders as crude oil prices remain 
high, and we will promote our products in those 
categories vigorously, especially in Asia and Oceania. 
Demand for sealants and adhesives appears likely to 
be basically unchanged from the previous year in the 
construction sector and in the automotive sector, but 
we will aim to increase sales by launching new products 
and by strengthening our Japanese sales companies. 
 The medium-range outlook for Japanese demand 
is promising as preparations get under way for the 
2020 Tokyo Olympics and as rebuilding continues 
apace in areas damaged by the Great East Japan 
Earthquake. We will strive to make the most of 
demand and to maintain our large market share in 
high-pressure hoses, in industrial materials, and in 
sealants and adhesives by developing competitive new 
products. We will upgrade our sales network and will 
reach out to customers with value-added product 
proposals through the marketing company Yokohama 
Industrial Products Japan Co., Ltd.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK for 2014
We project that operating income in other products 
will increase 4.9% in 2014, to ¥3.1 billion, on a 0.9% 
decline in sales, to ¥25.0 billion. In aircraft fixtures 
and components, we will work to raise profitability by 
raising prices and by raising productivity while 
striving for sales growth in replacement items. We 
expect the ongoing economic recovery in the United 
States to stimulate demand for commercial aircraft 
and, thus, for our lavatory modules and other 
products. 
 In golf equipment, we will aim for growth in sales 
and market share by promoting new products in our 
main product lines, PRGR iD nabla and egg. And we will 
work to improve profitability through cost reductions.
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Organizational Governance

Fulfilling corporate social responsibility is a 
prerequisite for lasting growth and development at 
any company. Our basic policy in our Grand Design 
100 medium-term management plan calls for asserting 
“world-class strengths in technologies for protecting 
the environment” and for fostering “a customer- 
oriented corporate culture that honors rigorous 
standards of corporate ethics.” 
 When we adopted Grand Design 100 in 2006, 
our concern with corporate social responsibility 
centered on environmental quality: developing tires 
that helped reduce fuel consumption and minimizing 
the environmental impact of our production 

operations. Our social awareness has since 
broadened, and we have begun working in additional 
ways to earn a valued place in the global community. 
 I emphasize “global community” because we 
have globalized our operations greatly over the past 
decade or so. We operate plants around the world 
and serve customers in diverse product sectors 
worldwide. Maintaining growth in a global context 
will depend on building a reputation for world-class 
integrity in regard to corporate governance, legal 
compliance, and public-interest activities, as well as 
environmental stewardship. 

C O R P O R AT E  S O C I A L  R E S P O N S I B I L I T Y

Reasons for emphasizing corporate social responsibility

Fulfilling our corporate social responsibility is fundamental to 
management at Yokohama. We work in all phases of our activity 
to contribute to social sustainability.

An Update from the Head of Our Corporate Social Responsibility 
Division about Our Progress in Fulfilling Our Social Mandate 
Corporate social responsibility is a core emphasis in our Grand Design 100 
medium-term management plan. I welcome this opportunity to bring our 
stakeholders up to date about our efforts to fulfill our corporate social responsibility 
and about how those efforts mesh with our growth strategy. 

Kinya Kawakami
Director and Managing Corporate Officer
Head of Corporate Social Responsibility Division (as of 2013)

We need to be alert at our operations in every nation 
to local expectations and to sensitivities in other 
nations. A plant that we build and operate in any 
nation needs to comply, of course, with local 
environmental regulations and with other local legal 
requirements. But we also need to comply in every 
nation with basic global standards. That can mean 
being more rigorous than local regulations require, as 
in regard to labor practices. 

 Complying with legal regulations and with 
social expectations increasingly means more, 
meanwhile, than enforcing strict internal standards. 
We also need to ensure, for example, that our 
suppliers of raw materials comply with pertinent 
regulatory guidelines. Note that adhering to high 
ethical standards is also indispensable in attracting 
and retaining superior human resources. 

The risks of failing to fulfill our social mandate

The International Organization for Standardization’s 
ISO 26000 standard is a global framework for 
fulfilling corporate social responsibility in seven 
sectors (see graphic, facing page). Since 2010, we 
have established and tackled action priorities based 

on the ISO 26000 regimen. We will continue 
working at our operations worldwide to address our 
priorities in the seven ISO 26000 sectors.
 In addition, we became a signatory to the 
United Nations Global Compact in 2012. That 

Benchmarks of progress

Our commitment to fulfilling our corporate social 
responsibility transcends short-term business 
interests, but I am confident that it will contribute to 
increasing our corporate value and even to improving 
our business performance over the long term. I have 
witnessed that potential at our Hiratsuka Factory, 
which I manage concurrently with heading the 
Corporate Social Responsibility Division. 
 We held an open house at the Hiratsuka Factory 
in February 2013 for members of the community. Our 
visitors were extremely impressed with our Yokohama 
Forever Forest project, which we inaugurated in 2007. 
That project provides for planting 500,000 trees 
around our plants worldwide by our corporate 
centennial in 2017. 
 The visitors were especially impressed by an 
offshoot of the project under way in the northeastern 

Japan community of Otsuchi-cho, Iwate Prefecture. 
That community was the scene of severe devastation 
wrought by the 2011 Great East Japan Earthquake 
and the subsequent tsunami. We are nurturing and 
planting tree seedlings there as part of an initiative for 
creating lifesaving sylvan barriers along the coast.
 Our overseas subsidiaries also undertake an 
impressive range of public-interest activities. To cite 
but a few examples, our tire sales company in 
Germany has conducted clean-up work along the 
Rhine River for several years, one of our Chinese 
subsidiaries provides support to minority ethnic 
groups in Yunnan Province, and one of our Thai 
subsidiaries provides assistance to needy children. 
Those kinds of activities engender goodwill toward 
our organization, and that goodwill carries over into 
the marketplace. 

Benefits for our business performance

I am determined for us to continue broadening our 
activity in fulfilling our corporate social 
responsibility. The forestation work in Otsuchi-cho 
that I mentioned is an excellent example of how 
well-conceived public-interest activities can grow. 
 We conduct the Yokohama Forever Forest 
project under the guidance of the prominent plant 
ecologist Dr. Akira Miyawaki. After the Great East 
Japan Earthquake, Dr. Miyawaki proposed building 
300 kilometers of sylvan barriers to protect coastal 
communities in northeastern Japan from future 
tsunami. We agreed to participate in that initiative 
and have conducted plantings annually in 

Otsuchi-cho since 2012. Thus has the expertise 
accumulated in the Yokohama Forever Forest project 
positioned us to address unexpected challenges, such 
as post-disaster recovery work. 
 Our work in Otsuchi-cho highlights the 
importance of maintaining a robust dialog with 
stakeholders. That dialog is invaluable in sensitizing 
us to the social expectations of our organization and 
in identifying ways to fulfill those expectations better. 
Fortified with valuable input from our stakeholders, 
we will continue striving to fulfill our corporate social 
responsibility and to thereby reinforce our corporate 
sustainability. 

Where we go from here

Community Involvement 
and Development

Consumer Issues

Fair Operating Practices The Environment

Labor Practices

Human Rights

The Seven Core Subjects of ISO 26000

compact is a pledge by corporations and other 
organizations to adhere to prescribed guidelines for 
respecting human rights, observing labor standards, 
protecting the environment, preventing illegal 

behavior, and addressing other concerns. Our fellow 
signatories include leading corporations around the 
world, and we were the first Japanese tire 
manufacturer to sign the compact.
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“world-class strengths in technologies for protecting 
the environment” and for fostering “a customer- 
oriented corporate culture that honors rigorous 
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decade or so. We operate plants around the world 
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Fulfilling our corporate social responsibility is fundamental to 
management at Yokohama. We work in all phases of our activity 
to contribute to social sustainability.

An Update from the Head of Our Corporate Social Responsibility 
Division about Our Progress in Fulfilling Our Social Mandate 
Corporate social responsibility is a core emphasis in our Grand Design 100 
medium-term management plan. I welcome this opportunity to bring our 
stakeholders up to date about our efforts to fulfill our corporate social responsibility 
and about how those efforts mesh with our growth strategy. 

Kinya Kawakami
Director and Managing Corporate Officer
Head of Corporate Social Responsibility Division (as of 2013)

We need to be alert at our operations in every nation 
to local expectations and to sensitivities in other 
nations. A plant that we build and operate in any 
nation needs to comply, of course, with local 
environmental regulations and with other local legal 
requirements. But we also need to comply in every 
nation with basic global standards. That can mean 
being more rigorous than local regulations require, as 
in regard to labor practices. 

 Complying with legal regulations and with 
social expectations increasingly means more, 
meanwhile, than enforcing strict internal standards. 
We also need to ensure, for example, that our 
suppliers of raw materials comply with pertinent 
regulatory guidelines. Note that adhering to high 
ethical standards is also indispensable in attracting 
and retaining superior human resources. 
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The International Organization for Standardization’s 
ISO 26000 standard is a global framework for 
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Corporate Social Responsibility Division. 
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The Seven Core Subjects of ISO 26000

compact is a pledge by corporations and other 
organizations to adhere to prescribed guidelines for 
respecting human rights, observing labor standards, 
protecting the environment, preventing illegal 

behavior, and addressing other concerns. Our fellow 
signatories include leading corporations around the 
world, and we were the first Japanese tire 
manufacturer to sign the compact.
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In our Tire Group and in our Multiple Business Group, 
we develop products with an eye to reducing the 
output of greenhouse gases and other environmentally 
burdensome substances and to conserving material 
and energy. We evaluate products in regard to four 
environmental criteria: prevention of global warming, 
resource recycling, resource saving, and safety and 
comfort.

 Our guidelines mandate that all new products 
achieve an aggregate improvement of at least 5% over 
existing products and that they at least match existing 
products in regard to all four criteria. By the end of 
2013, 93% of our products fulfilled our criteria for 
minimizing environmental impact, and we aim to 
increase that percentage to 100% by the end of 2017. 

C S R  T O P I C S

Environmentally friendly products

Taking part in efforts to forestall global warming is an 
important part of fulfilling our corporate social 
responsibility. We have therefore established a panel 
of experts to oversee such initiatives as installing 
cogeneration systems, shifting to cleaner fuels, and 
conserving energy throughout our operations. 
 Our medium-term target in Japan is to reduce 
our annual greenhouse emissions 25% by 2020, compared 
with 1990. In 2013, our overall reduction reached 16%. 
Our long-term target worldwide is to reduce our 
output of carbon dioxide more than 50% across our 
entire value chain by 2050, compared with 2005. 

Reducing output of greenhouse gasesCase Studies in Fulfilling Corporate Social Responsibility

Our efforts to fulfill our corporate social responsibility begin with our core business: developing products that 
minimize environmental impact and designing and operating our plants to minimize environmentally 
burdensome output. 

Four  P i l l a rs  o f  Env i ronmenta l  Funct ion  and  I t s  Index

Our Grand Design 100 medium-term management 
plan includes targets for reducing landfill waste at our 
plants. The principal targets in Phase III of that plan—
2012 to 2014—are to reduce annual landfill waste at 
our Japanese plants 35%, compared with 2006, and to 
reduce landfill waste per unit of production (by value) 
at least 1% annually at our plants worldwide. We 
achieved our year-on-year reduction targets for 2013 
in Japan, reducing our landfill waste 11%, to 15,134 
tons, and reducing landfill waste per unit of 
production 13%. Our efforts to achieve further 
reductions in 2014 center on reducing interim-product 
and product scrap. 

Reducing output of landfill waste 

Contributing to the prevention of global warming Contributing to safety 
and comfort

Evaluation by LCA

Environmentally friendly products

Environmental functions
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Environmental Quality

Cogeneration systems are helping Yokohama reduce the output of carbon dioxide greatly at 
its plants. In cogeneration, the heat emitted in thermal power generation becomes an energy 
source for generating steam or hot water for plant heating systems. Recycling heat in that 
manner raises energy efficiency and thus reduces the output of carbon dioxide. 
 Yokohama had installed cogeneration systems at four plants in Japan by the end of 
2013. Those systems, which operate around the clock, supply about 60% of the electric 
power and nearly all of the steam used at their plants. Pictured is the cogeneration system at 
Yokohama’s Mie Plant. 

Proportion of Environmentally Friendly Products among All Products

FY 2013
(January to December 2013)

FY 2007
(April 2006 to March 2007)

47% 93%

Ratio of recycled materials

(Kt-CO2)

(1,000 t)
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Our holding company for Tire Group and Multiple 
Business Group operations in China, Yokohama 
Rubber (China) Co., Ltd., supports sustainable 
development in cooperation with the nonprofit Beijing 
SanSheng Environment and Development Research 
Institute. That cooperation, which began in 2011, 
addresses needs in the Yunnan Province village of 
Heyuan. Forestry is the main occupation for the Heyuan 
villagers. Incomes in the village are low, and the forestry 
work has taken a serious toll on the natural environment.
 Yokohama Rubber (China) has funded 
educational initiatives in Heyuan and has undertaken 
environmental-restoration work in the vicinity. That 
work earned the company a Most Excellent Company 

Image Award at the 2013 Beautiful China awards 
ceremony in Beijing in September 2013. Beautiful 
China is a joint undertaking by 17 Chinese 
newspapers and web-based media outlets to encourage 
and recognize environmental-protection activities by 
companies and by individuals.

China

Public-Interest Activities at Overseas Subsidiaries 

Hangzhou Yokohama Tire Co., Ltd., a production and 
sales subsidiary for passenger car tires, received official 
recognition in 2013 for its work on behalf of 
environmental quality. The recognition was from the 
Hangzhou Economic and Technological Development 
Zone, where the plant operates. It acknowledged the 
company’s work in reducing its output of environmentally 
burdensome substances at the plant and in conducting 
forestation work. 
 In addition, the development zone has designated 
Hangzhou Yokohama Tire a platform for providing 
young people in the community with environmental-

protection training. In that capacity, the company 
engages in diverse exchanges with schools and 
residents in its community. Hangzhou Yokohama Tire 
also earned a 
designation in 2013 
from Zhejiang 
Province as a model 
company for 
workplace safety. 

China

LLC Yokohama R.P.Z., our Russian production and 
sales subsidiary for passenger car tires, has earned a 
model-plant designation from its host province of 
Lipetsk. The designation recognizes excellence in 
safety and environmental management. Yokohama 
R.P.Z. was one of just four companies selected for the 
designation among 30 Lipetsk companies that vied for 

the honor. The companies underwent plant inspections 
and made presentations at a national environmental 
conference in Moscow. Concern about environmental 
quality is mounting in Russia, and companies that fail 
to comply with environmental regulations risk heavy 
fines. 

Russia

Our subsidiary Yokohama Tyre Vietnam Inc. contributed 
relief supplies to areas in central Vietnam damaged by 
floods caused by a severe typhoon in November 2013. 

In addition, employee volunteers from the company 
took part in cleanup efforts in villages after the 
floodwaters receded.

Vietnam

Under biodiversity-preservation guidelines adopted in 
2010, we work at seven of our Japanese plants to 
preserve water quality in the plant vicinities. Those 
activities include monitoring the quality of intake 
water and effluent, conducting periodic surveys of 
riverine ecology and wildfowl, and incorporating the 
findings of the monitoring and surveys in biodiversity- 
preservation activities. 
 In October 2013, we convened the first of a 
planned series of biodiversity briefing sessions at our 
Mie Plant. In attendance were representatives of local 
environmental groups and of local government 

agencies and members of the community. The session 
included a presentation about our biodiversity- 
preservation activities followed by an exchange of 
ideas with the attendees. 

Biodiversity-preservation efforts at seven plants in Japan

Our Yokohama Forever Forest project provides for 
planting 500,000 trees at Yokohama plants worldwide 
by 2017, our corporate centennial. Under the guidance 
of plant ecologist Dr. Akira Miyawaki, we conduct the 
plantings in accordance with the principle of potential 
natural vegetation. That means seeking to achieve the 
amount and kind of vegetation that would arise in the 
absence of human intervention. The first plantings took 
place in 2007, and we had planted about 330,000 trees 
by December 31, 2013. 
 Employees at our plants nurture the seedlings for 
the Yokohama Forever Forest at plant facilities. And 
they supply some of their seedlings to public agencies, 

The Yokohama Forever Forest

Public-Interest Activities
We undertake public-interest activities at our operations worldwide in the spirit of earning 
a welcome place in our host communities.

Forestation know-how accumulated in the Yokohama 
Forever Forest project is rendering service in efforts to 
restore areas hit by the 2011 Great East Japan Earthquake 
and subsequent tsunami. Dr. Miyawaki proposed 
building 300 kilometers of the sylvan barriers to protect 
coastal communities in northeastern Japan from future 
tsunami, and that project is under way.  
 We participate in the sylvan-barrier project and 
have conducted three annual plantings since April 
2012 in the tsunami-ravaged town of Otsuchi-cho, 
Iwate Prefecture. Each planting has covered a 
50-meter stretch on earthen mounds built for the 
barriers, and we will continue to plant 50 meters of 
trees each year. We will thus create 300 meters of 
sylvan protection by our corporate centennial in 2017.

Applications for Yokohama Forever forestation expertise in earthquake- and tsunami-ravaged areas

The first-phase tree planting at Yokohama’s Russian production and sales subsidiary for passenger car tires,
 LLC Yokohama R.P.Z. (October 2013)

The third-phase tree planting in Otsuchi-cho

The 2013 Beautiful China awards ceremony
(September 2013)

The official launch of the sustainable development project 
in Heyuan, Yunnan Province (June 2013)

A presentation for elementary
school children about environmental-

protection measures at Hangzhou 
Yokohama Tire

Biodiversity-preservation activity 
at the Onomichi Plant

The inaugural biodiversity briefing session 
at the Mie Plant (October 2013)

schools, and companies to use in other forestation 
initiatives. Their donations to third parties totaled 
160,000 seedlings at the end of April 2014.
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We in the Yokohama Group work in the spirit of our 
corporate philosophy to achieve continuing growth in 
corporate value and to thereby earn the unwavering 
confidence of all our stakeholders. Our efforts have 

included building a corporate governance framework 
for ensuring sound management that is fair and 
transparent, and we have worked continuously to 
reinforce that framework. 

Our management framework centers on governance 
entities prescribed by Japan’s Company Law: the 
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, 
representative directors, the Board of Directors, the 
Board of Corporate Auditors, and an independent 
public accountancy. We supplement those entities 
with corporate officers, who are responsible for 
operational management, to speed the process of 
making and implementing decisions. The senior 
management team comprises 11 directors, headed by 
the chairman and president, and 15 corporate officers, 
not including officers who serve concurrently as 
directors. The directors include six members who 
serve concurrently as corporate officers and two 
independent directors. 
 We reinforce our management framework with 
the Executive Committee, which comprises the 
chairman and other selected members of the Board of 
Directors and other executives. That committee, 
convening in the presence of corporate auditors, 
reviews overall operational policy and matters crucial 
to the performance of work. It reports its findings to 

the Board of Directors, and the directors discuss and 
act on the committee’s recommendations in 
accordance with the pertinent corporate guidelines. 
 Auditing at Yokohama is a tripartite undertaking 
by our corporate auditors, who monitor management; 
an independent public accounting firm, which 
monitors the company’s financial accounting; and our 
Audit Department, which monitors operations and 
accounting at the parent company and at principal 
subsidiaries and affiliates. We reinforce the auditing 
function by maintaining autonomy among those units.
 The corporate auditors number five, including 
three recruited from outside the company to help 
ensure objectivity in the auditing function. They 
participate in meetings of the Executive Committee 
and of other management gatherings where important 
matters are discussed and receive reports about the 
status of our business operations. The auditors also 
obtain important information from the independent 
public accounting firm and from the Audit Department. 
We assign an assistant to the auditors to help them 
carry out their work smoothly and effectively.

Bas ic  approach

Our Board of Directors resolved on February 14, 2014, 
to discontinue, subject to shareholder approval, our 
mechanisms for preventing a hostile takeover. Those 
mechanisms established rules applicable to any party 
that sought to purchase of a significant equity stake in 
our company and authorized preventive measures 
against purchases deemed hostile. We adopted those 
mechanisms in 2007 in the spirit of preserving corporate 
value and safeguarding the common interests of our 
shareholders. 
 Changes in the business environment have 
lessened the need, however, for takeover defense 
measures. Lessening that need further has been our 
progress in achieving the Phase III (2012–2014) targets 
in our Grand Design 100 medium-term management 
plan. Those developments have bolstered our momentum in 

maximizing corporate value and, thus, shareholder value. 
 We will remain vigilant in regard to prospective 
acquirers of large equity stakes in our company. And 
we will do everything possible within the scope of 
Japan’s Financial Instruments Law, Company Law, and 
other pertinent laws and regulations to safeguard our 
shareholders’ interests. 
 Our Board of Directors will seek to obtain 
thorough information about the proposed purchases 
to enable our shareholders to evaluate their worthiness 
and will strive to secure sufficient time for our shareholders 
to weigh the pros and cons of the proposed purchases. 
The Board of Directors will also express opinions about 
the propriety of the proposed purchases for the shareholders 
to take into consideration.

Takeover  de fense  measures

The Board of Directors adopted basic policy for internal 
controls based on Japan’s Company Law at its regular 
meeting in May 2006. And the Board adopted guidelines 
in April 2009 to prevent involvement with organized 
crime. Below is a summary of our internal controls in 
regard to risk management and ethical compliance.

Risk management
Spearheading risk-preparedness measures at Yokohama 
is our Risk Management Committee, chaired by the 
general manager of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Division. That committee evaluates risk from a 
cross-sector perspective and devises precautionary 
measures. We have also established committees to 
manage risk, respond to incidents, establish guidelines, 
and distribute manuals in regard to ethical compliance, 
safety, disaster preparedness, environmental quality, 
information security, personal information management, 
and exports. Our Executive Committee receives timely 
reports from all of those committees.

Ethical compliance
Compliance Committee and Corporate Compliance Department
A director who discovers evidence of a serious legal or 
regulatory breach or of any other serious misconduct 
reports his or her suspicion to the chairman of our 
Compliance Committee, who is the president of the 
company, and to our corporate auditors. Responsible 

for enforcing ethical compliance is our Corporate 
Compliance Department. That department responds 
promptly to possible ethical breaches and also conducts 
training and awareness-raising activities in regard to 
ethical compliance for our directors and employees. 

Enforcement at subsidiaries and affiliates
Each principal Yokohama subsidiary and affiliate has 
prepared and observes ethical guidelines based on the 
action guidelines established by the Compliance 
Committee. The Corporate Compliance Department 
and designated compliance officers at the subsidiaries 
and affiliates share information and develop a common 
grasp of issues. In addition, the Corporate Compliance 
Department makes timely reports to the Executive 
Committee about the status of ethical compliance in 
the Yokohama Group. 
 The annual budgets of principal subsidiaries and 
affiliates are subject to approval by the Board of 
Directors and the Executive Committee. The Audit 
Department, meanwhile, systematically monitors the 
auditing functions for accounting, operations, and 
ethnical compliance at the subsidiaries and affiliates 
and reports its findings to the Board of Directors, to 
the pertinent divisions, and to the corporate auditors. 

Whistleblower hotline
We also maintain hotlines to handle reports of suspected 
infractions from persons inside and outside the company. 
The hotlines handled 28 inquiries and consultations in 2013. 

In te rna l  cont ro ls

F ramework

Selection, dismissal, oversight Selection, dismissal, oversight Selection, dismissal, oversight

Financial 
auditing

Financial auditing

Financial auditing

Auditing

Auditing
Management, oversight
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obtain important information from the independent 
public accounting firm and from the Audit Department. 
We assign an assistant to the auditors to help them 
carry out their work smoothly and effectively.

Bas ic  approach

Our Board of Directors resolved on February 14, 2014, 
to discontinue, subject to shareholder approval, our 
mechanisms for preventing a hostile takeover. Those 
mechanisms established rules applicable to any party 
that sought to purchase of a significant equity stake in 
our company and authorized preventive measures 
against purchases deemed hostile. We adopted those 
mechanisms in 2007 in the spirit of preserving corporate 
value and safeguarding the common interests of our 
shareholders. 
 Changes in the business environment have 
lessened the need, however, for takeover defense 
measures. Lessening that need further has been our 
progress in achieving the Phase III (2012–2014) targets 
in our Grand Design 100 medium-term management 
plan. Those developments have bolstered our momentum in 

maximizing corporate value and, thus, shareholder value. 
 We will remain vigilant in regard to prospective 
acquirers of large equity stakes in our company. And 
we will do everything possible within the scope of 
Japan’s Financial Instruments Law, Company Law, and 
other pertinent laws and regulations to safeguard our 
shareholders’ interests. 
 Our Board of Directors will seek to obtain 
thorough information about the proposed purchases 
to enable our shareholders to evaluate their worthiness 
and will strive to secure sufficient time for our shareholders 
to weigh the pros and cons of the proposed purchases. 
The Board of Directors will also express opinions about 
the propriety of the proposed purchases for the shareholders 
to take into consideration.

Takeover  de fense  measures

The Board of Directors adopted basic policy for internal 
controls based on Japan’s Company Law at its regular 
meeting in May 2006. And the Board adopted guidelines 
in April 2009 to prevent involvement with organized 
crime. Below is a summary of our internal controls in 
regard to risk management and ethical compliance.

Risk management
Spearheading risk-preparedness measures at Yokohama 
is our Risk Management Committee, chaired by the 
general manager of the Corporate Social Responsibility 
Division. That committee evaluates risk from a 
cross-sector perspective and devises precautionary 
measures. We have also established committees to 
manage risk, respond to incidents, establish guidelines, 
and distribute manuals in regard to ethical compliance, 
safety, disaster preparedness, environmental quality, 
information security, personal information management, 
and exports. Our Executive Committee receives timely 
reports from all of those committees.

Ethical compliance
Compliance Committee and Corporate Compliance Department
A director who discovers evidence of a serious legal or 
regulatory breach or of any other serious misconduct 
reports his or her suspicion to the chairman of our 
Compliance Committee, who is the president of the 
company, and to our corporate auditors. Responsible 

for enforcing ethical compliance is our Corporate 
Compliance Department. That department responds 
promptly to possible ethical breaches and also conducts 
training and awareness-raising activities in regard to 
ethical compliance for our directors and employees. 

Enforcement at subsidiaries and affiliates
Each principal Yokohama subsidiary and affiliate has 
prepared and observes ethical guidelines based on the 
action guidelines established by the Compliance 
Committee. The Corporate Compliance Department 
and designated compliance officers at the subsidiaries 
and affiliates share information and develop a common 
grasp of issues. In addition, the Corporate Compliance 
Department makes timely reports to the Executive 
Committee about the status of ethical compliance in 
the Yokohama Group. 
 The annual budgets of principal subsidiaries and 
affiliates are subject to approval by the Board of 
Directors and the Executive Committee. The Audit 
Department, meanwhile, systematically monitors the 
auditing functions for accounting, operations, and 
ethnical compliance at the subsidiaries and affiliates 
and reports its findings to the Board of Directors, to 
the pertinent divisions, and to the corporate auditors. 

Whistleblower hotline
We also maintain hotlines to handle reports of suspected 
infractions from persons inside and outside the company. 
The hotlines handled 28 inquiries and consultations in 2013. 

In te rna l  cont ro ls

F ramework

Selection, dismissal, oversight Selection, dismissal, oversight Selection, dismissal, oversight

Financial 
auditing

Financial auditing

Financial auditing

Auditing

Auditing
Management, oversight

Internal auditing
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Tire Group
Production and Sales
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Europe
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Asia
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Yokohama Tyre Vietnam Inc. (Vietnam)

Sales and Marketing Support
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Shandong Yokohama Rubber Industrial Products Co., Ltd. (China)
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Sales and Marketing Support

Americas

Yokohama Aerospace America, Inc. (United States)

Europe

Yokohama Industrial Products Europe, GmbH (Germany)

Asia

Yokohama Industrial Products Sales—Shanghai Co., Ltd. (China)

Yokohama Industrial Products Asia-Pacific Pte. Ltd. (Singapore)

Other

Yokohama Rubber (China) Co., Ltd. (China/Management company)

Singapore Branch (Singapore/Business coordination)

Y.T. Rubber Co., Ltd. (Thailand/Natural rubber processing)
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Head Office

Tadanobu  Nagumo
Chairman and CEO and Representative Director

Hikomi tsu  No j i
President and Representative Director
CEO of Yokohama Tire Corporation,
CEO of Yokohama Corporation of North America

Tooru  Kobayash i
Director and Executive Vice President
Head of Corporate Planning Div.,
in charge of IT & Management System Planning Dept.

Yu j i  Go to
Director and Senior Managing Corporate Officer
Chief Tire Production Officer,
Head of Tire Production Div.,
Head of Hiratsuka Factory

Takao  O ish i
Director and Senior Managing Corporate Officer
President of Multiple Business

Fumio  Mor i ta
Director and Managing Corporate Officer
Head of Corporate Social Responsibility Div.,
in charge of Sports Business Div., and Yokohama Motorsports International Co., Ltd.

Hideto  Katsuragawa
Director and Managing Corporate Officer
Head of Tire Business Planning Div.,
Head of Tire Logistics Div.

Te tsuya  Kuze
Director and Managing Corporate Officer
Chief Tire Technical Officer,
Head of Consumer Tire Development Div.

Sh igeo  Komatsu
Director and Managing Corporate Officer
Head of Global Procurement Div.,
in charge of Corporate Finance & Accounting Dept.,
President of Yokohamagomu Finance Co., Ltd.

Naozumi  Furukawa
Director

Hide ich i  Okada
Director

Front row, from left: Takao Oishi, Tooru Kobayashi, Tadanobu Nagumo, Hikomitsu Noji, Yuji Goto, Fumio Morita
Back row, from left: Hideichi Okada, Tetsuya Kuze, Hideto Katsuragawa, Shigeo Komatsu, Naozumi Furukawa
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Business Environment
The global business environment in fiscal 2013 
(“2013,” January 1–December 31) was a mix of 
contrasting trends. Economic recovery got under way 
in the United States, and Europe’s economic decline 
appeared to be bottoming out. Growth slowed, 
however, in China, in Asian emerging economies, and 
in the world’s natural resources–producing nations. In 
Japan, the Abe government’s proactive economic 
policies stimulated growth, corporations reported an 
improving business outlook overall, and consumer 
spending turned upward. Business conditions in the 
tire sector improved as the yen weakened and as raw 
material prices declined.
 Yokohama Rubber and its subsidiaries undertook 
wide-ranging measures in pursuit of sustainable 
business expansion. Those measures included 
stepped-up marketing and diverse measures for raising 
operating efficiency and for lowering costs.

Sales, Expenses, and Earnings
Net sales increased 7.5% in 2013, to ¥601.6 billion. In 
the Tire Group, sales recovered overall in markets 
outside Japan, led by gains in North America and 
China, and Yokohama posted solid growth in Japan’s 
replacement tire market, led by growth in studless 
tires. In the Multiple Business (diversified products) 
Group, the Company posted strong sales in 
automotive hoses, in marine hoses and pneumatic 
marine fenders, and in conveyor belts.  

 Cost of sales increased 4.7%, to ¥395.5 billion. 
That increase was smaller than the increase in net sales 
on account of a downward trend in prices for natural 
rubber and other raw materials. Gross profit increased 
13.2%, to ¥206.1 billion, and the gross profit margin 
rose 1.7 points, to 34.3%. Selling, general and 
administrative expenses increased 12.9%, to ¥149.5 
billion, and were equivalent to 24.8% of net sales, up 
1.2 points from the previous year. 
 Operating income increased 14.0%, to ¥56.6 
billion, and the operating return on sales rose 0.5 points, 
to 9.4%. The improvement in operating profitability 
reflected the weakening of the yen and the downward 
trend in raw material prices. 
 Other expenses, net of other income, totaled ¥828 
million, compared with other income, net of other expenses, 
of ¥2.1 billion in 2012. Income before income taxes 
and minority interests increased 7.8%, to ¥55.8 
billion. Net income increased 7.3%, to ¥35.0 billion. 
Yokohama posted record high figures for net sales, 
operating income, and net income. 
 Currency exchange rates are an influential factor 
in Yokohama’s fiscal performance. The average yen/dollar 
exchange rate was ¥98, compared with ¥80 in 2012, 
and the average yen/euro exchange rate was ¥130, 
compared with ¥103 in 2012.

Results by Segment
By business
Operating income in Yokohama’s tire operations 
increased 6.1%, to ¥46.0 billion, on a 7.9% increase in 
sales, to ¥479.5 billion. Yokohama posted yen-value 
sales growth in original equipment tires despite a 
decline in unit volume attributable to declining 
vehicle production. That growth reflected vigorous 
demand for low fuel consumption vehicles, a sector 
that Yokohama serves with a large range of tire sizes, 
and the Company’s success in winning fitments on 
additional vehicle models. The Company posted 
growth in Japan’s replacement tire market, led by sales 
gains in studless tires amid heavy snowfalls. Yokohama’s 
tire business outside Japan expanded overall. That 
expansion reflected strong recovery in North America 
and in China and occurred despite weakening demand 
in Russia and in other European nations. 
 In Yokohama’s industrial products business, 
operating income increased 51.2%, to ¥7.7 billion, on 
a 5.5% increase in sales, to ¥96.9 billion. The 
Company’s business in this sector consists principally 
of high-pressure hoses, sealants and adhesives, 
conveyor belts, antiseismic products, marine hoses, 
and marine fenders. Sales increased overall in 
high-pressure hoses on account of growth in North 
American sales of automotive hoses and a second-half 
recovery in Yokohama’s Japanese hose business, 
though sales of hoses for construction equipment were 
weak in Southeast Asia. In industrial materials, 

Yokohama posted especially strong growth in sales of 
marine hoses and pneumatic marine fenders, and sales 
also increased in conveyor belts and, led by overseas 
gains in automotive sealants, in sealants and adhesives.
 Operating income in other products, principally 
aircraft fixtures and components and golf equipment, 
increased 136.1%, to ¥3.0 billion, on an 8.5% increase 
in sales, to ¥25.2 billion. Sales and earnings in aircraft 
fixtures and components benefited from a recovery in 
demand for lavatory modules, from an increase in 
demand in the government sector, and from the 
weakening of the yen. Japan’s market for golf 
equipment showed signs of recovery, meanwhile, and 
Yokohama achieved strong sales in golf clubs with 
new products in its iD nabla RED series and egg series.

By region
Operating income in Japan increased 22.8%, to ¥52.2 
billion, despite a 1.5% decline in sales, to ¥369.7 billion. 
The sales decline was partly due to the consolidation 
of a European sales company. That resulted in the 
shift of the accounting for sales at that company to 
“Other regions,” from Japan. Operating income 
benefited, meanwhile, from the weakening of the yen 
and the downward trend in raw material prices.  
 In North America, operating income declined 
15.2%, to ¥4.9 billion, on a 21.2% increase in sales, to 
¥134.4 billion. Yokohama’s North American sales of 
tires increased, as an upturn in the second half more 
than offset first-half weakness. Sales of automotive 
hoses increased solidly, bolstered by the weakening of 
the yen. The decline in operating income in North 
America reflected escalating price competition in tires, 
which undercut prices.
 Operating income in Asian nations other than 
Japan increased 1.6%, to ¥3.6 billion, on a 42.6% 
increase in sales, to ¥47.9 billion. In China, sales and 
earnings benefited from recovering sales for tires and 
from the weakening of the yen, and earnings benefited 
further from improvements in capacity utilization rates 
at Yokohama’s plants.  
 In other regions, the operating deficit increased 
319.0%, to ¥2.7 billion, on a 24.6% increase in sales, 
to ¥49.7 billion. The results in this segment consist 
principally of business in Europe and Oceania. Sales 
benefited from the first-time consolidation of a 
European sales company and from the weakening of 
the yen. The increase in the operating deficit reflected 
slackening demand in Europe, including Russia, and 
price reductions associated with the accumulation of 
excess inventory.  
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Business Environment
The global business environment in fiscal 2013 
(“2013,” January 1–December 31) was a mix of 
contrasting trends. Economic recovery got under way 
in the United States, and Europe’s economic decline 
appeared to be bottoming out. Growth slowed, 
however, in China, in Asian emerging economies, and 
in the world’s natural resources–producing nations. In 
Japan, the Abe government’s proactive economic 
policies stimulated growth, corporations reported an 
improving business outlook overall, and consumer 
spending turned upward. Business conditions in the 
tire sector improved as the yen weakened and as raw 
material prices declined.
 Yokohama Rubber and its subsidiaries undertook 
wide-ranging measures in pursuit of sustainable 
business expansion. Those measures included 
stepped-up marketing and diverse measures for raising 
operating efficiency and for lowering costs.

Sales, Expenses, and Earnings
Net sales increased 7.5% in 2013, to ¥601.6 billion. In 
the Tire Group, sales recovered overall in markets 
outside Japan, led by gains in North America and 
China, and Yokohama posted solid growth in Japan’s 
replacement tire market, led by growth in studless 
tires. In the Multiple Business (diversified products) 
Group, the Company posted strong sales in 
automotive hoses, in marine hoses and pneumatic 
marine fenders, and in conveyor belts.  

 Cost of sales increased 4.7%, to ¥395.5 billion. 
That increase was smaller than the increase in net sales 
on account of a downward trend in prices for natural 
rubber and other raw materials. Gross profit increased 
13.2%, to ¥206.1 billion, and the gross profit margin 
rose 1.7 points, to 34.3%. Selling, general and 
administrative expenses increased 12.9%, to ¥149.5 
billion, and were equivalent to 24.8% of net sales, up 
1.2 points from the previous year. 
 Operating income increased 14.0%, to ¥56.6 
billion, and the operating return on sales rose 0.5 points, 
to 9.4%. The improvement in operating profitability 
reflected the weakening of the yen and the downward 
trend in raw material prices. 
 Other expenses, net of other income, totaled ¥828 
million, compared with other income, net of other expenses, 
of ¥2.1 billion in 2012. Income before income taxes 
and minority interests increased 7.8%, to ¥55.8 
billion. Net income increased 7.3%, to ¥35.0 billion. 
Yokohama posted record high figures for net sales, 
operating income, and net income. 
 Currency exchange rates are an influential factor 
in Yokohama’s fiscal performance. The average yen/dollar 
exchange rate was ¥98, compared with ¥80 in 2012, 
and the average yen/euro exchange rate was ¥130, 
compared with ¥103 in 2012.

Results by Segment
By business
Operating income in Yokohama’s tire operations 
increased 6.1%, to ¥46.0 billion, on a 7.9% increase in 
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decline in unit volume attributable to declining 
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demand for low fuel consumption vehicles, a sector 
that Yokohama serves with a large range of tire sizes, 
and the Company’s success in winning fitments on 
additional vehicle models. The Company posted 
growth in Japan’s replacement tire market, led by sales 
gains in studless tires amid heavy snowfalls. Yokohama’s 
tire business outside Japan expanded overall. That 
expansion reflected strong recovery in North America 
and in China and occurred despite weakening demand 
in Russia and in other European nations. 
 In Yokohama’s industrial products business, 
operating income increased 51.2%, to ¥7.7 billion, on 
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Company’s business in this sector consists principally 
of high-pressure hoses, sealants and adhesives, 
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high-pressure hoses on account of growth in North 
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though sales of hoses for construction equipment were 
weak in Southeast Asia. In industrial materials, 

Yokohama posted especially strong growth in sales of 
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gains in automotive sealants, in sealants and adhesives.
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Yokohama achieved strong sales in golf clubs with 
new products in its iD nabla RED series and egg series.
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billion, despite a 1.5% decline in sales, to ¥369.7 billion. 
The sales decline was partly due to the consolidation 
of a European sales company. That resulted in the 
shift of the accounting for sales at that company to 
“Other regions,” from Japan. Operating income 
benefited, meanwhile, from the weakening of the yen 
and the downward trend in raw material prices.  
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15.2%, to ¥4.9 billion, on a 21.2% increase in sales, to 
¥134.4 billion. Yokohama’s North American sales of 
tires increased, as an upturn in the second half more 
than offset first-half weakness. Sales of automotive 
hoses increased solidly, bolstered by the weakening of 
the yen. The decline in operating income in North 
America reflected escalating price competition in tires, 
which undercut prices.
 Operating income in Asian nations other than 
Japan increased 1.6%, to ¥3.6 billion, on a 42.6% 
increase in sales, to ¥47.9 billion. In China, sales and 
earnings benefited from recovering sales for tires and 
from the weakening of the yen, and earnings benefited 
further from improvements in capacity utilization rates 
at Yokohama’s plants.  
 In other regions, the operating deficit increased 
319.0%, to ¥2.7 billion, on a 24.6% increase in sales, 
to ¥49.7 billion. The results in this segment consist 
principally of business in Europe and Oceania. Sales 
benefited from the first-time consolidation of a 
European sales company and from the weakening of 
the yen. The increase in the operating deficit reflected 
slackening demand in Europe, including Russia, and 
price reductions associated with the accumulation of 
excess inventory.  
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Financial Position
Total assets at fiscal year-end increased ¥109.8 billion 
over the previous fiscal year-end, to ¥653.6 billion. 
Current assets increased ¥50.5 billion, to ¥319.3 
billion. That increase consisted principally of increases 
in sales receivables and inventories. Total fixed assets 
increased ¥59.3 billion, to ¥334.3 billion at fiscal 
year-end. That increase consisted principally of 
valuation gains on investment securities, an increase in 
property and plant associated with capital spending, 
and an increase in the yen-denominated value of 
overseas fixed assets associated with the weakening of 
the yen. 
 Total liabilities increased ¥42.1 billion, to ¥374.6 
billion at fiscal year-end. Current liabilities increased 
¥35.5 billion, to ¥270.1 billion, largely on account of 
increases in commercial paper and short-term 
borrowings. Fixed liabilities increased ¥6.6 billion, to 
¥104.5 billion, largely on account of an increase in 
deferred tax liabilities. Total net assets increased ¥67.7 
billion, to ¥279.0 billion at fiscal year-end. That 
increase resulted as Yokohama posted ¥35.0 billion in 
net income, as rising equity prices increased the value 
of the Company’s holdings of investment securities, 
and as the weakening of the yen resulted in a gain on 
foreign currency translation adjustments. 
 Interest-bearing debt increased ¥29.0 billion, to 
¥175.3 billion at fiscal year-end. The ratio of 

interest-bearing debt to total net assets declined to 0.6 
at fiscal year-end, from 0.7 at the previous fiscal 
year-end, and thus remained below management’s 
stated ceiling of 1.0.

Cash Flow
Net cash provided by operations in 2013 totaled 
¥46.7 billion, as income before income taxes and 
minority interests totaled ¥55.8 billion. Net cash used 
in investing activities totaled ¥44.6 billion. That total 
consisted principally of purchases of fixed assets in 
connection with fortifying production capacity in 
Japan and overseas. Free cash flow totaled ¥2.1 
billion, down ¥26.5 billion from the previous year. 
Net cash provided by financing activities totaled ¥8.5 
billion, and cash and cash equivalents at fiscal 
year-end totaled ¥35.9 billion, up ¥14.7 billion over 
the previous year-end.

Capital Expenditures
Capital expenditures increased 19.4% in 2013, to 
¥33.5 billion, and depreciation declined 4.1%, to 
¥24.0 billion. The total for capital expenditures 
consisted mainly of ¥29.3 billion of investment in tire 
operations and ¥3.0 billion of investment in industrial 
products. The chief components of Yokohama’s 
investment in tire operations were ¥11.2 billion of 
investment in Japan for expanding production 

capacity, raising productivity, and raising product 
quality and ¥8.1 billion of investment for expanding 
production capacity at the Company’s passenger car 
tire plant in the Philippines. Yokohama also invested 
in expanding and building tire plants in other nations. 
The investment in industrial products was principally 
for expanding production capacity for high-pressure 
hoses and for raising product quality in several 
product categories.  
 Yokohama funded its capital expenditures with a 
combination of internally generated funds and 
borrowings. The Company did not record any 
significant disposals or sales of equipment in 2013.

R&D Expenditures
Expenditures on R&D in 2013 declined 1.5%, to ¥12.6 
billion. That total included ¥1.5 billion in work at 
Yokohama’s R&D Center on advanced development, 
such as materials for reducing the environmental 
impact of tires, and ¥11.2 billion in work in the 
product divisions on applied development: ¥8.0 
billion in tires, ¥2.2 billion in industrial products, and 
¥1.0 billion in other products.

Dividends
Yokohama abides by a policy of maintaining stable 
dividends while retaining sufficient liquidity to fortify 
its financial position and fund investment in growth. 

In view of the Company’s recent performance and 
outlook, management raised the annual dividends ¥2, 
to ¥22 per share for fiscal 2013—an interim dividend 
of ¥10, compared with ¥8 for 2012, and a year-end 
dividend of ¥12, the same as for 2012.

Fiscal 2014 Outlook
The economic outlook for 2014 is complex. In Japan, 
the government’s economic stimuli and monetary 
easing by the Bank of Japan continue to generate 
positive results. A concern, however, is the 3% hike in 
the national sales tax from 5% to 8% on April 1, 2014. 
Demand surged in advance of the rate increase, and a 
related downturn in demand is likely. Uncertainty 
persists, meanwhile, in regard to the outlook for 
demand in overseas markets.
 Yokohama’s fiscal projections for 2014 call for a 
7.1% increase in net income, to ¥37.5 billion, on an 
11.2% increase in operating income, to ¥63.0 billion, 
and a 7.5% increase in net sales, to ¥647.0 billion. 
That would mean a third consecutive year of record 
high figures for all three of those performance 
indicators. In preparing these projections, Yokohama 
has assumed average exchange rates of ¥95 to the US 
dollar, compared with ¥98 in 2013, and ¥130 to the 
euro, the same rate as in 2013. 
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Below is a partial listing of risks that could adversely affect the 
Company’s business performance, financial position, or share price. 
All references to possible future events and to other subjects are from 
the standpoint of the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013.

Economic Conditions
Vehicle tires account for most of the Company’s 
worldwide revenues. Demand for those tires reflects 
economic conditions in nations and regions where the 
Company sells its products. Therefore, economic 
trends and developments that diminish demand in the 
Company’s main markets—including Japan, North 
America, Europe, and Asian nations besides Japan— 
could adversely affect the Company’s business 
performance and financial position.

Exchange Rates
The Company conducts most of its business 
transactions and investment in yen, but it conducts 
some transactions and investment in dollars and in 
other currencies. The Company continues to expand 
its operations globally. That expansion will increase 
the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in currency 
exchange rates. The Company hedges its exposure to 
currency exchange rates with forward exchange 
contracts and with other instruments, but hedging 
cannot fully offset the effect of fluctuations in currency 
exchange rates on the Company’s business performance 
and financial position.

Seasonal Factors
Historically, the Company’s sales and earnings 
performance has tended to be strongest in the winter 
months. That is mainly because sales of winter category 
tires are an important contributor to the Company’s 
sales and earnings. A later-than-usual onset of winter 
or lighter-than-usual snowfall could diminish demand 
for winter category tires and thereby adversely affect the 
Company’s business performance and financial position.

Raw Material Prices
Yokohama’s principal raw materials are natural rubber 
and petrochemical products, including synthetic 
rubber and carbon black. Sharp increases in prices for 
crude oil could adversely affect the Company’s business 
performance and financial position. 

Access to Funding
Instability in any of the world’s principal financial 
markets could affect the Company‘s access to funding 
adversely. In addition, the lowering of the Company’s 
credit rating by leading credit-rating agencies could 
adversely affect the Company’s access to debt financing 
and could increase the Company’s cost of funds. That 
could adversely affect the Company’s financial 
performance and financial position.

Interest Rates
As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s interest-bearing 
debt was equivalent to 26.9% of its total assets. An 
increase in interest rates could adversely affect the 
Company’s financial performance and financial position.

Securities
The Company owns marketable securities, mainly 
Japanese equities. A decline in the value of those 
securities could adversely affect the Company’s 
financial performance and financial position.

Investment
In response to growing demand for automobile tires, 
the Company is investing in expanding its tire production 
capacity, especially in Asia. Changes in the regulatory 
environment, in economic conditions, in industrial 
circumstances, or in political and social stability in the 
host nations for the Company’s investment could 
adversely affect the Company’s business performance 
and financial position.

Retirement Benefit Obligations
The Company calculates retirement benefit obligations 
and retirement benefit expenses according to 
predetermined criteria, including expected returns on 
pension assets. If actual return on the Company’s 
pension assets declined substantially below the expected 
return, that could adversely affect the Company’s 
financial performance and financial position. Similarly, 
if the Company revised its retirement plan in a manner 
that increased future payment obligations or resulted 
in the occurrence of unforeseen service liabilities, that 
could adversely affect the Company’s financial 
performance and financial position.

Natural Disasters
Earthquakes and other natural disasters could damage 
the Company’s plants and other facilities and could 
limit the Company’s access to essential raw materials 
and services. That could adversely affect the Company’s 
business performance and financial position.

Intellectual Property
The Company strives to protect its accumulated 
technological expertise from unauthorized use by third 
parities and its intellectual property rights from 
infringement, but it could, in some circumstances, be 
unable to prevent such unauthorized use or infringement. 
Conversely, third parties could claim that the Company’s 
products or technologies infringe on their intellectual 
property rights. Unauthorized use of the company’s 
technological expertise, infringement of its intellectual 
property, or court rulings that its products or technologies 
infringe on third-party intellectual property rights could 
adversely affect the Company’s business performance 
and financial position.

Product Quality
Management at the Company is committed to ensuring 
high and consistent product quality and maintains a 
framework and procedures for fulfilling that commitment, 
but product defects could occur despite the Company’s 
best efforts in prevention. The occurrence of defects 
serious enough to occasion large product recalls could 
adversely affect the Company’s business performance 
and financial position.

Laws, Regulations, and Litigation
The Company is subject to laws and regulations in the 
nations where it conducts business that pertain to such 
activities as investment, trade, currency exchange, 
competition, and environmental protection. New or 
amended laws or regulations that resulted in constraining 
the Company’s operating latitude or in raising the 
Company’s costs could adversely affect the Company’s 
business performance and financial position. In addition, 
the Company could become the subject of litigation or 
of investigations by legal authorities in the nations where 
it operates. Serious litigation or the initiation of an 
investigation of the Company by legal authorities 
could adversely affect the Company’s business 
performance and financial position.
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Company sells its products. Therefore, economic 
trends and developments that diminish demand in the 
Company’s main markets—including Japan, North 
America, Europe, and Asian nations besides Japan— 
could adversely affect the Company’s business 
performance and financial position.

Exchange Rates
The Company conducts most of its business 
transactions and investment in yen, but it conducts 
some transactions and investment in dollars and in 
other currencies. The Company continues to expand 
its operations globally. That expansion will increase 
the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in currency 
exchange rates. The Company hedges its exposure to 
currency exchange rates with forward exchange 
contracts and with other instruments, but hedging 
cannot fully offset the effect of fluctuations in currency 
exchange rates on the Company’s business performance 
and financial position.

Seasonal Factors
Historically, the Company’s sales and earnings 
performance has tended to be strongest in the winter 
months. That is mainly because sales of winter category 
tires are an important contributor to the Company’s 
sales and earnings. A later-than-usual onset of winter 
or lighter-than-usual snowfall could diminish demand 
for winter category tires and thereby adversely affect the 
Company’s business performance and financial position.

Raw Material Prices
Yokohama’s principal raw materials are natural rubber 
and petrochemical products, including synthetic 
rubber and carbon black. Sharp increases in prices for 
crude oil could adversely affect the Company’s business 
performance and financial position. 

Access to Funding
Instability in any of the world’s principal financial 
markets could affect the Company‘s access to funding 
adversely. In addition, the lowering of the Company’s 
credit rating by leading credit-rating agencies could 
adversely affect the Company’s access to debt financing 
and could increase the Company’s cost of funds. That 
could adversely affect the Company’s financial 
performance and financial position.

Interest Rates
As of December 31, 2013, the Company’s interest-bearing 
debt was equivalent to 26.9% of its total assets. An 
increase in interest rates could adversely affect the 
Company’s financial performance and financial position.

Securities
The Company owns marketable securities, mainly 
Japanese equities. A decline in the value of those 
securities could adversely affect the Company’s 
financial performance and financial position.

Investment
In response to growing demand for automobile tires, 
the Company is investing in expanding its tire production 
capacity, especially in Asia. Changes in the regulatory 
environment, in economic conditions, in industrial 
circumstances, or in political and social stability in the 
host nations for the Company’s investment could 
adversely affect the Company’s business performance 
and financial position.

Retirement Benefit Obligations
The Company calculates retirement benefit obligations 
and retirement benefit expenses according to 
predetermined criteria, including expected returns on 
pension assets. If actual return on the Company’s 
pension assets declined substantially below the expected 
return, that could adversely affect the Company’s 
financial performance and financial position. Similarly, 
if the Company revised its retirement plan in a manner 
that increased future payment obligations or resulted 
in the occurrence of unforeseen service liabilities, that 
could adversely affect the Company’s financial 
performance and financial position.

Natural Disasters
Earthquakes and other natural disasters could damage 
the Company’s plants and other facilities and could 
limit the Company’s access to essential raw materials 
and services. That could adversely affect the Company’s 
business performance and financial position.

Intellectual Property
The Company strives to protect its accumulated 
technological expertise from unauthorized use by third 
parities and its intellectual property rights from 
infringement, but it could, in some circumstances, be 
unable to prevent such unauthorized use or infringement. 
Conversely, third parties could claim that the Company’s 
products or technologies infringe on their intellectual 
property rights. Unauthorized use of the company’s 
technological expertise, infringement of its intellectual 
property, or court rulings that its products or technologies 
infringe on third-party intellectual property rights could 
adversely affect the Company’s business performance 
and financial position.

Product Quality
Management at the Company is committed to ensuring 
high and consistent product quality and maintains a 
framework and procedures for fulfilling that commitment, 
but product defects could occur despite the Company’s 
best efforts in prevention. The occurrence of defects 
serious enough to occasion large product recalls could 
adversely affect the Company’s business performance 
and financial position.

Laws, Regulations, and Litigation
The Company is subject to laws and regulations in the 
nations where it conducts business that pertain to such 
activities as investment, trade, currency exchange, 
competition, and environmental protection. New or 
amended laws or regulations that resulted in constraining 
the Company’s operating latitude or in raising the 
Company’s costs could adversely affect the Company’s 
business performance and financial position. In addition, 
the Company could become the subject of litigation or 
of investigations by legal authorities in the nations where 
it operates. Serious litigation or the initiation of an 
investigation of the Company by legal authorities 
could adversely affect the Company’s business 
performance and financial position.
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ELEVEN-YEAR SUMMARY
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the nine months ended December 31, 2011, and the years ended March 31, 2004–2011

Millions of Yen

  2013

 ¥ 601,630

  56,647

  55,819

  35,008

  23,982

  33,505

  12,633

  175,251

  279,021

  653,584

 ¥ 108.32

  837.84

  22.00

  9.4

  14.7

  1.0

  0.6

  20.6

  19,770

Net sales

Operating income

Income before income taxes and minority interests

Net income (loss)

Depreciation

Capital expenditures

R&D expenditures

Interest-bearing debt

Total net assets

Total assets

Per share (yen):

Net income (loss): Basic

Net assets

Cash dividends

Key financial ratios:

Operating return on sales (%)

Return on shareholders’ equity (%)

Capital turnover (times)

Interest-bearing debt to shareholders’ equity (times)

Interest coverage (times)

Number of employees

  2012

 ¥ 559,700

  49,696

  51,768

  32,611

  25,007

  28,070

  12,825

  146,285

  211,350

  543,829

  ¥  97.87

  631.64

  20.00

  8.9

  17.8

  1.1

  0.7

  20.7

  19,412

  2011/12 

 ¥ 465,134

  26,291

  16,604

  11,619

  19,871

  22,433

  9,307

  161,998

  168,286

  501,786

 ¥   34.68

  484.04

  7.00

  5.7

  7.1

  0.9

  1.0

  14.3

  19,272

  2011/3

 ¥ 519,742

  29,491

  21,880

  13,924

  25,885

  24,944

  12,748

  146,773

  170,872

  478,916

 ¥   41.55

  489.27

  10.00

  5.7

  8.6

  1.1

  0.9

  13.4

  18,465

  2010

 ¥ 466,358

  21,455

  18,969

  11,487

  28,184

  17,471

  13,280

  154,675

  163,382

  466,973

 ¥  34.27

  475.26

  10.00

  4.6

  7.7

  1.0

  1.0

  8.0

  17,566

  2009

 ¥ 517,263

  12,808

  (3,166)

  (5,654)

  28,684

  43,341

  15,277

  179,379

  144,159

  473,376

 ¥ (16.87)

  417.45

  10.00

  2.5

  (3.6)

  1.0

  1.3

  4.3

  16,772

  2008

 ¥ 551,431

  33,119

  20,478

  21,060

  27,238

  27,292

  15,289

  165,614

  181,538

  526,192

 ¥  62.81

  525.96

  13.00

  6.0

  11.8

  1.0

  0.9

  9.0

  16,099

  2007

 ¥ 497,396

  21,070

  26,038

  16,363

  22,166

  40,638

  14,649

  167,474

  186,528

  536,322

 ¥  48.79

  542.10

  12.00

  4.2

  9.3

  1.0

  0.9

  7.0

  15,423

  2006

 ¥ 451,911

  21,947

  22,673

  21,447

  20,491

  29,067

  14,557

  163,022

  174,609

  502,014

 ¥  62.75

  508.64

  10.00

  4.9

  14.0

  1.0

  1.0

  10.1

  14,617

  2005

 ¥ 419,789

  20,955

  16,337

  11,322

  19,616

  27,533

  14,265

  151,758

  139,534

  432,717

 ¥  32.95

  398.24

  8.00

  5.0

  8.6

  1.0

  1.1

  11.2

  13,464

  2004

 ¥ 401,718

  21,073

  16,931

  10,331

  19,199

  23,735

  13,818

  159,700

  130,622

  429,350

 ¥  29.95

  373.23

  8.00

  5.2

  8.6

  1.0

  1.2

  9.2

  13,264
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ELEVEN-YEAR SUMMARY
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, the nine months ended December 31, 2011, and the years ended March 31, 2004–2011
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Net assets
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  22,673

  21,447
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  1.0
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  14,617
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  16,337

  11,322

  19,616

  27,533

  14,265

  151,758

  139,534
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  8.6
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  13,464
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  13,818
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

 ¥ 37,179 

  167,831 
  91,025 
  11,583 
  12,646 
  (971)

  319,293 

  35,594 
  159,731 
  467,138 
  3,039 
  17,452 

  682,954 
  (475,383)

  207,571 

  99,638 
  6,069 
  21,536 
  (523)

  126,720 

 ¥ 653,584 

  2012
  (12.31.12)

 ¥ 21,400 

  148,098 
  78,991 
  10,355 
  11,214 
  (1,225)

  268,833 

  34,733 
  145,834 
  427,081 
  2,892 
  16,790 

  627,330 
  (441,297)

  186,033 

  67,310 
  6,190 
  16,161 
  (698)

  88,963 

 ¥ 543,829 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

 $ 352,775 

  1,592,477 
  863,693 
  109,907 
  119,994 
  (9,211)

  3,029,635 

  337,736 
  1,515,615 
  4,432,466 
  28,837 
  165,597 

  6,480,251 
  (4,510,703)

  1,969,548 

  945,426 
  57,588 
  204,347 
  (4,965)

  1,202,396 

   $ 6,201,579 

Assets

Current Assets: 
Cash and deposits 
Trade receivables:
 Notes and accounts (Note 6)
Inventories (Note 3)
Deferred income taxes (Note 19)
Other current assets
Allowance for doubtful receivables

  Total current assets
 

Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost (Notes 4, 5 and 13):
Land 
Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment
Leased assets
Construction in progress

 
Less accumulated depreciation

  Total property, plant and equipment, net
 
  
Investments and Other Assets:
Investment securities (Note 16)
Deferred income taxes (Note 19)
Other investments and other assets
Allowance for doubtful receivables

  Total investments and other assets

  Total  assets

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

 ¥ 79,623 
  31,825 
  12,000 
  76,718 
  6,871 
  11,035 
  33,916 
  853 
  17,218 

  270,059 

  51,804 
  18,680 
  18,554 
  15,466 

  104,504 

  374,563 

  38,909 
  31,953 
  173,761 

  (11,358)

  233,265 

  38,586 
  4,299 

  (5,394)

  37,491 

  8,265 

  279,021 

 ¥ 653,584 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

 ¥ 73,738 
  19,205 
  — 
  77,601 
  2,800 
  16,375 
  28,543 
  799 
  15,545 

  234,606 

  53,342 
  8,806 
  18,701 
  17,024 

  97,873 

  332,479 

  38,909 
  31,953 
  145,607 
  
  (11,294)

  205,175 

  20,331 
  (14,938)

  (6,409)

  (1,016)

  7,191 

  211,350 

 ¥ 543,829 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

 $ 755,505 
  301,975 
  113,863 
  727,946 
  65,192 
  104,708 
  321,816 
  8,092 
  163,377 

  2,562,474 

  491,542 
  177,243 
  176,055 
  146,756 

  991,596 

  3,554,070 

  369,192 
  303,193 
  1,648,737 

  (107,769)

  2,213,353 

  366,125 
  40,795 

  (51,184)

  355,736 

  78,420 

  2,647,509 

 $ 6,201,579 

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:     
Bank loans
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 4)
Commercial paper 
Trade notes and accounts payable (Note 6)
Electronically recorded obligations—operating
Accrued income taxes
Accrued expenses
Allowance for sales returns
Other current liabilities (Notes 6 and 19)   

   Total current liabilities    

Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 4)
Deferred income taxes (Note 19)
Reserve for pension and severance payments (Note 18)
Other long-term liabilities

   Total long-term liabilities

   Total liabilities
      
Contingent liabilities (Note 7)    

 
Net Assets
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common stock:
 Authorized: 700,000,000 shares as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
 Issued: 342,598,162 shares as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:
Capital surplus
Retained earnings (Note 11)  
Treasury stock, at cost: 19,437,042 shares as of December 31, 2013,
 and 19,377,418 shares as of December 31, 2012  

   Total shareholders’ equity

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
 Unrealized gains on securities
 Foreign currency translation adjustments  
 Adjustments related to pension obligations  
  of consolidated overseas subsidiaries 

   Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

Minority Interests

   Total net assets

      
   Total liabilities and net assets    

Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

(Note 1)

Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

(Note 1)
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries 
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012
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Assets

Current Assets: 
Cash and deposits 
Trade receivables:
 Notes and accounts (Note 6)
Inventories (Note 3)
Deferred income taxes (Note 19)
Other current assets
Allowance for doubtful receivables

  Total current assets
 

Property, Plant and Equipment, at Cost (Notes 4, 5 and 13):
Land 
Buildings and structures
Machinery and equipment
Leased assets
Construction in progress

 
Less accumulated depreciation

  Total property, plant and equipment, net
 
  
Investments and Other Assets:
Investment securities (Note 16)
Deferred income taxes (Note 19)
Other investments and other assets
Allowance for doubtful receivables

  Total investments and other assets

  Total  assets

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

 ¥ 79,623 
  31,825 
  12,000 
  76,718 
  6,871 
  11,035 
  33,916 
  853 
  17,218 

  270,059 

  51,804 
  18,680 
  18,554 
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  2013 
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 $ 755,505 
  301,975 
  113,863 
  727,946 
  65,192 
  104,708 
  321,816 
  8,092 
  163,377 

  2,562,474 

  491,542 
  177,243 
  176,055 
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  3,554,070 

  369,192 
  303,193 
  1,648,737 

  (107,769)

  2,213,353 

  366,125 
  40,795 

  (51,184)

  355,736 
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 $ 6,201,579 

Liabilities and Net Assets

Current Liabilities:     
Bank loans
Current maturities of long-term debt (Note 4)
Commercial paper 
Trade notes and accounts payable (Note 6)
Electronically recorded obligations—operating
Accrued income taxes
Accrued expenses
Allowance for sales returns
Other current liabilities (Notes 6 and 19)   

   Total current liabilities    

Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-term debt (Note 4)
Deferred income taxes (Note 19)
Reserve for pension and severance payments (Note 18)
Other long-term liabilities

   Total long-term liabilities

   Total liabilities
      
Contingent liabilities (Note 7)    

 
Net Assets
Shareholders’ Equity:
Common stock:
 Authorized: 700,000,000 shares as of December 31, 2013 and 2012
 Issued: 342,598,162 shares as of December 31, 2013 and 2012:
Capital surplus
Retained earnings (Note 11)  
Treasury stock, at cost: 19,437,042 shares as of December 31, 2013,
 and 19,377,418 shares as of December 31, 2012  

   Total shareholders’ equity

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss):
 Unrealized gains on securities
 Foreign currency translation adjustments  
 Adjustments related to pension obligations  
  of consolidated overseas subsidiaries 

   Total accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) 

Minority Interests

   Total net assets

      
   Total liabilities and net assets    

Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

(Note 1)

Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

(Note 1)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

 342,598,162
 —
 —
 —

 —
 —
  —

 —

 342,598,162
 —
 —
 —
 —
 —

 —
 —
  —

 —

 342,598,162

 ¥ 38,909
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  —

  38,909
  —
  —
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —

   —

  —

 ¥ 38,909

 ¥ 31,953
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  —

  31,953
  —
  —
  —
  —
  0

  —
  —
   —

  —

 ¥ 31,953

 ¥ 117,016 
  32,611 
  (4,020)
  — 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

  145,607 
  35,008 
  (7,110)
  256 
  — 
  — 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

 ¥ 173,761 

 ¥ 183,125 
  32,611 
  (4,020)
  (6,541)

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

  205,175 
  35,008 
  (7,110)
  256 
  (64)
  0 

  — 
  — 
    — 

  — 

 ¥ 233,265 

  ¥ (20,949)
  — 
  — 
  — 

  9,009 
  11,451 
   (527)

  — 

  (1,016)
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  18,255 
  19,238 
    1,014 

  — 

 ¥ 37,491 

 ¥ 168,286 
  32,611 
  (4,020)
  (6,541)

  9,009 
  11,451 
   (527)

  1,081 

  211,350 
  35,008 
  (7,110)
  256 
  (64)
  0 
 
  18,255 
  19,238 
   1,014 

  1,074 

 ¥ 279,021 

 $ 369,192
  —
  —
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  —

 $ 369,192

 $ 303,187
  —
  —
  —
  —
  6

  —
  —
   —

  —

 $ 303,193

$(107,167)
  — 
  — 
  — 
  (607)
  5 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

$(107,769)

  $   (9,645)
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  173,217 
  182,538 
   9,626 

  — 

 $ 355,736 

 $ 68,235
  —
  —
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  10,185

 $ 78,420

 $ 1,381,601  
  332,172 
  (67,468)
  2,432 
  — 
  — 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

 $ 1,648,737 

 $ 1,946,813 
  332,172 
  (67,468)
  2,432 
  (607)
  11 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

 $ 2,213,353 

 $ 2,005,403 
  332,172 
  (67,468)
  2,432 
  (607)
  11 

  173,217 
  182,538 
   9,626 

  10,185 

 $ 2,647,509 

 ¥ 6,110
   —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  1,081

  7,191
  —
  —
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  1,074

 ¥ 8,265

  ¥  (4,753)
  — 
  — 
  (6,541)

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

  (11,294)
  — 
  — 
  — 
  (64)
  0 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

 ¥ (11,358)

Balance at January 1, 2012
 Net income
 Cash dividends paid
 Purchase of treasury shares
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
  Net unrealized gains and losses on securities
  Foreign currency translation adjustments
  Adjustments related to pension obligations
   of consolidated overseas subsidiaries
 Increase in minority interests

Balance at January 1, 2013 
 Net income 
 Cash dividends paid
 Change of scope of consolidation 
 Purchase of treasury shares
 Disposal of treasury shares
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
  Net unrealized gains and losses on securities
  Foreign currency translation adjustments
  Adjustments related to pension obligations
   of consolidated overseas subsidiaries
 Increase in minority interests

Balance at December 31, 2013

Balance at January 1, 2013
 Net income
 Cash dividends paid
 Change of scope of consolidation
 Purchase of treasury shares
 Disposal of treasury shares
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
  Net unrealized gains and losses on securities
  Foreign currency translation adjustments
  Adjustments related to pension obligations
   of consolidated overseas subsidiaries
 Increase in minority interests

Balance at December 31, 2013

  2013  
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

    ¥ 55,819 

  23,982 
  1,155 
  1,411 
  (172)
  694 

  (7,058)
  1,938 
  (6,570)
  2,479 
  1,884 
  (3,184)
  (25,726)

  46,652 

  (32,422)
  (5,541)

  279 
  (6,886)

  (44,570)

  233 
  12,000 
  17,475 
  (10,566)
  10,000 
  (10,000)
  (7,103)
  (2,555)
  (962)

  8,522 

  2,531 

  13,135 
  21,115 

  1,613 

    ¥ 35,863 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

    ¥ 51,768

  25,007
  — 
  — 
  302
  (397)

  (654)
  1,971
  (9,251)
  200
  1,924
  (2,518)
  (9,176)

  59,176

  (26,055)
  (2,281)

  184
  (2,393)

  (30,545)

  (10,609)
  (9,000)
  8,267
  (7,936)
  —
  —
  (4,021)
  —
  (7,366)

  (30,665)

  1,582

  (452)
  21,567

  — 

    ¥ 21,115

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

 $ 529,642 

  227,559 
  10,962 
  13,385 
  (1,630)
  6,587 

  (66,967)
  18,388 
  (62,336)
  23,522 
  17,864 
  (30,209)
  (244,103)

  442,664 

  (307,641)
  (52,577)

  2,645 
  (65,335)

  (422,908)

  2,209 
  113,863 
  165,815 
  (100,260)
  94,886 
  (94,886)
  (67,398)
  (24,246)
  (9,122)

  80,861 

  24,012 

  124,629 
  200,348 

  15,310 

 $ 340,287 

 

Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests
Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes and minority 
 interests to net cash provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization (Notes 2 and 5) 
  Business structure improvement expenses (Note 9) 
  Impairment loss (Note 10) 
  Increase (decrease) in reserve for pension and severance payments
  Other, net 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:  
 Trade notes and accounts receivable 
 Inventories 
 Notes and accounts payable 
 Other, net 
Interest and dividends received  
Interest paid  
Income taxes paid

   Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities:  
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  
Purchases of marketable securities and investment securities 
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities,   
 investment securities and property 
Other, net  

    Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities:  
Increase (decrease) in short-term bank loans  
Increase (decrease) in commercial paper  
Proceeds from long-term debt  
Decrease in long-term debt  
Proceeds from issuance of bonds  
Redemption of bonds  
Payment of cash dividends  
Repayments of long-term deposits received  
Other, net

   Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   
Effect of changes in consolidation scope on  
 cash and cash equivalents 

   Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 
  
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Shares of
Common Stock

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Total
Shareholders’

Equity

Total Accumu-
lated Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Minority
Interests

Total
Net Assets

Common
Stock

Capital
Surplus

Retained
Earnings

Treasury
Stock

Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)

Minority
Interests

Total
Net Assets

Total
Shareholders’

Equity

Total Accumu-
lated Other

Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

(Note 1)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries
For the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

 342,598,162
 —
 —
 —

 —
 —
  —

 —

 342,598,162
 —
 —
 —
 —
 —

 —
 —
  —

 —

 342,598,162

 ¥ 38,909
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  —

  38,909
  —
  —
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —

   —

  —

 ¥ 38,909

 ¥ 31,953
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  —

  31,953
  —
  —
  —
  —
  0

  —
  —
   —

  —

 ¥ 31,953

 ¥ 117,016 
  32,611 
  (4,020)
  — 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

  145,607 
  35,008 
  (7,110)
  256 
  — 
  — 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

 ¥ 173,761 

 ¥ 183,125 
  32,611 
  (4,020)
  (6,541)

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

  205,175 
  35,008 
  (7,110)
  256 
  (64)
  0 

  — 
  — 
    — 

  — 

 ¥ 233,265 

  ¥ (20,949)
  — 
  — 
  — 

  9,009 
  11,451 
   (527)

  — 

  (1,016)
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  18,255 
  19,238 
    1,014 

  — 

 ¥ 37,491 

 ¥ 168,286 
  32,611 
  (4,020)
  (6,541)

  9,009 
  11,451 
   (527)

  1,081 

  211,350 
  35,008 
  (7,110)
  256 
  (64)
  0 
 
  18,255 
  19,238 
   1,014 

  1,074 

 ¥ 279,021 

 $ 369,192
  —
  —
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  —

 $ 369,192

 $ 303,187
  —
  —
  —
  —
  6

  —
  —
   —

  —

 $ 303,193

$(107,167)
  — 
  — 
  — 
  (607)
  5 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

$(107,769)

  $   (9,645)
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  173,217 
  182,538 
   9,626 

  — 

 $ 355,736 

 $ 68,235
  —
  —
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  10,185

 $ 78,420

 $ 1,381,601  
  332,172 
  (67,468)
  2,432 
  — 
  — 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

 $ 1,648,737 

 $ 1,946,813 
  332,172 
  (67,468)
  2,432 
  (607)
  11 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

 $ 2,213,353 

 $ 2,005,403 
  332,172 
  (67,468)
  2,432 
  (607)
  11 

  173,217 
  182,538 
   9,626 

  10,185 

 $ 2,647,509 

 ¥ 6,110
   —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  1,081

  7,191
  —
  —
  —
  —
  —

  —
  —
   —

  1,074

 ¥ 8,265

  ¥  (4,753)
  — 
  — 
  (6,541)

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

  (11,294)
  — 
  — 
  — 
  (64)
  0 

  — 
  — 
   — 

  — 

 ¥ (11,358)

Balance at January 1, 2012
 Net income
 Cash dividends paid
 Purchase of treasury shares
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
  Net unrealized gains and losses on securities
  Foreign currency translation adjustments
  Adjustments related to pension obligations
   of consolidated overseas subsidiaries
 Increase in minority interests

Balance at January 1, 2013 
 Net income 
 Cash dividends paid
 Change of scope of consolidation 
 Purchase of treasury shares
 Disposal of treasury shares
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
  Net unrealized gains and losses on securities
  Foreign currency translation adjustments
  Adjustments related to pension obligations
   of consolidated overseas subsidiaries
 Increase in minority interests

Balance at December 31, 2013

Balance at January 1, 2013
 Net income
 Cash dividends paid
 Change of scope of consolidation
 Purchase of treasury shares
 Disposal of treasury shares
 Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)
  Net unrealized gains and losses on securities
  Foreign currency translation adjustments
  Adjustments related to pension obligations
   of consolidated overseas subsidiaries
 Increase in minority interests

Balance at December 31, 2013

  2013  
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

    ¥ 55,819 

  23,982 
  1,155 
  1,411 
  (172)
  694 

  (7,058)
  1,938 
  (6,570)
  2,479 
  1,884 
  (3,184)
  (25,726)

  46,652 

  (32,422)
  (5,541)

  279 
  (6,886)

  (44,570)

  233 
  12,000 
  17,475 
  (10,566)
  10,000 
  (10,000)
  (7,103)
  (2,555)
  (962)

  8,522 

  2,531 

  13,135 
  21,115 

  1,613 

    ¥ 35,863 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

    ¥ 51,768

  25,007
  — 
  — 
  302
  (397)

  (654)
  1,971
  (9,251)
  200
  1,924
  (2,518)
  (9,176)

  59,176

  (26,055)
  (2,281)

  184
  (2,393)

  (30,545)

  (10,609)
  (9,000)
  8,267
  (7,936)
  —
  —
  (4,021)
  —
  (7,366)

  (30,665)

  1,582

  (452)
  21,567

  — 

    ¥ 21,115

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

 $ 529,642 

  227,559 
  10,962 
  13,385 
  (1,630)
  6,587 

  (66,967)
  18,388 
  (62,336)
  23,522 
  17,864 
  (30,209)
  (244,103)

  442,664 

  (307,641)
  (52,577)

  2,645 
  (65,335)

  (422,908)

  2,209 
  113,863 
  165,815 
  (100,260)
  94,886 
  (94,886)
  (67,398)
  (24,246)
  (9,122)

  80,861 

  24,012 

  124,629 
  200,348 

  15,310 

 $ 340,287 

 

Operating Activities:
Income before income taxes and minority interests
Adjustments to reconcile income before income taxes and minority 
 interests to net cash provided by operating activities:
  Depreciation and amortization (Notes 2 and 5) 
  Business structure improvement expenses (Note 9) 
  Impairment loss (Note 10) 
  Increase (decrease) in reserve for pension and severance payments
  Other, net 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:  
 Trade notes and accounts receivable 
 Inventories 
 Notes and accounts payable 
 Other, net 
Interest and dividends received  
Interest paid  
Income taxes paid

   Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities:  
Purchases of property, plant and equipment  
Purchases of marketable securities and investment securities 
Proceeds from sales of marketable securities,   
 investment securities and property 
Other, net  

    Net cash used in investing activities

Financing Activities:  
Increase (decrease) in short-term bank loans  
Increase (decrease) in commercial paper  
Proceeds from long-term debt  
Decrease in long-term debt  
Proceeds from issuance of bonds  
Redemption of bonds  
Payment of cash dividends  
Repayments of long-term deposits received  
Other, net

   Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents  
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year   
Effect of changes in consolidation scope on  
 cash and cash equivalents 

   Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 
  
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of U.S. Dollars (Note 1)
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Total Accumu-
lated Other

Comprehensive
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Millions of Yen

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

(Note 1)

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), and its 
domestic consolidated subsidiaries were prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, 
which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards, and are compiled from the consolidated financial statements prepared by the Company as required by the 
Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan. The Company’s subsidiaries in the United States of America (the 
“USA”) prepared their financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the USA.
    In preparing these statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated 
financial statements prepared domestically to present these statements in a form that is more familiar to readers outside 
Japan. In addition, the accompanying notes include information that is not required under accounting principles generally 
accepted in Japan.
    The U.S. dollar amounts included herein are solely for the convenience of the reader and have been translated from the 
Japanese yen amounts at the rate of ¥105.39 = US$1.00, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on December 31, 
2013.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its significant 
majority-owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries (together, the “Companies”). Investment in significant unconsolidated 
subsidiaries and affiliated companies (companies owned 20% to 50%) is accounted for by the equity method. 
    All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. The excess of the cost of 
the Companies’ investments in subsidiaries and affiliated companies over their equity in the net assets at the dates of 
acquisition was not material and was fully written off when acquired.
 
b. Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency receivables and payables are translated at the year-end spot rates. The resulting exchange gains and 
losses are charged or credited to income.
    The assets and liabilities of the consolidated subsidiaries outside Japan are translated at the fiscal year-end rates of 
those companies, and the income and expense accounts of those companies are translated at the average rates of those 
companies.
    Differences arising from such translation are recorded in foreign currency translation adjustments and minority interests 
in net assets.

c. Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or 
less are considered cash equivalents.

d. Marketable Securities and Investment Securities
Securities classified as available for sale and whose fair value is readily determinable are carried at fair value, with 
unrealized gains or losses included as a component of net assets, net of applicable taxes. Costs are determined by the 
moving-average method.
    Securities whose fair value is not readily determinable are carried at cost. Costs are determined by the moving-average 
method.

e. Derivative Instruments
Derivative instruments whose fair value is readily determinable are carried at fair value.
 
f. Inventories
Inventories of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are stated at cost, determined by the moving-average method, 
and inventories of certain foreign subsidiaries are valued at the lower of cost based on the first-in first-out method or 
market. The book value of inventories of the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries reflects a write-down 
due to declines in profitability.

g. Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
The allowance for doubtful receivables is provided at an estimated amount of probable bad debts plus an amount based on
past credit loss experience.

h. Depreciation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed principally by the straight-line method based on the estimated 
useful lives of the respective assets. 
 
i. Reserve for Severance Payments and Employee Benefit Plans
Employees who terminate their service with the Companies are, under most circumstances, entitled to lump-sum 
severance payments determined by reference to their current basic rate of pay and length of service. The Company and 
certain consolidated subsidiaries have noncontributory pension plans for termination caused by age limit. 
 The Companies accounted for these liabilities based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the balance 
sheet date. 
 Unrecognized actuarial gain and loss are amortized starting in the year following the year in which the gain or loss is 
recognized, primarily by the straight-line method over a period of 10 years, which is shorter than the average remaining 
service period of employees. 
Unapplied Accounting Standards

Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits (Accounting Standards Board of Japan [ASBJ] Statement No. 26, May 17,  
2012) 

(1) Outline 
Actuarial gains and losses and prior service costs are required to be recognized in net assets at net of tax effects. 
Funded status is fully recognized as a liability or asset on the balance sheet. With respect to the amortization method of 
the expected benefit, the benefit formula basis is newly allowed as an option, in addition to the straight-line basis. In 
addition, the method for determining the discount rate has been amended. 

(2) Planned date of application 
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries will adopt the accounting standards from the end of the fiscal year 
ending December 31, 2014. But, the amortization method of the expected benefit will be adopted from the beginning of 
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015. The standard and guidance will not be applied retrospectively to financial 
statements in the prior years. 

(3) Effects of the application of the above accounting standards on consolidated financial statements
The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the Company in adopting these accounting standards are under 
evaluation. 

 
j. Allowance for Sales Returns
An allowance for sales returns is provided for losses incurred on the return of snow tires sold during the fiscal year but 
returned subsequent to the balance sheet date. The allowance is based on an estimate using the average rate of such 
returns in prior years. 
 
k. Income Taxes
Income taxes in Japan comprise a corporate tax, an enterprise tax and prefectural and municipal inhabitants’ taxes. 
    Provision is made for deferred income taxes arising from temporary differences between assets or liabilities for financial 
and tax reporting purposes. 
 
l. Revenue Recognition
Sales of products are recognized upon product shipments to customers. 
 
m. Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs are charged to income as incurred. 
 
n. Earnings per Share
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the average number 
of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted net income per share is not disclosed because there were no 
dilutive securities in the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
 
(Change in Accounting Policies)
Change in accounting method for depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Company changed its accounting method for the depreciation of property, plant and equipment (except for buildings 
and the Onomichi plant) from the declining-balance method to the straight-line method, beginning in the fiscal year ended 

elsewhere in Asia, the Company plans to continue to maintain and renovate its production operations in Japan. 

those that best reflect current conditions. 
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd., and Consolidated Subsidiaries

1. Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd. (the “Company”), and its 
domestic consolidated subsidiaries were prepared on the basis of accounting principles generally accepted in Japan, 
which are different in certain respects as to the application and disclosure requirements of International Financial Reporting 
Standards, and are compiled from the consolidated financial statements prepared by the Company as required by the 
Financial Instruments and Exchange Law of Japan. The Company’s subsidiaries in the United States of America (the 
“USA”) prepared their financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the USA.
    In preparing these statements, certain reclassifications and rearrangements have been made to the consolidated 
financial statements prepared domestically to present these statements in a form that is more familiar to readers outside 
Japan. In addition, the accompanying notes include information that is not required under accounting principles generally 
accepted in Japan.
    The U.S. dollar amounts included herein are solely for the convenience of the reader and have been translated from the 
Japanese yen amounts at the rate of ¥105.39 = US$1.00, the approximate exchange rate prevailing on December 31, 
2013.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
a. Principles of Consolidation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its significant 
majority-owned domestic and foreign subsidiaries (together, the “Companies”). Investment in significant unconsolidated 
subsidiaries and affiliated companies (companies owned 20% to 50%) is accounted for by the equity method. 
    All significant intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. The excess of the cost of 
the Companies’ investments in subsidiaries and affiliated companies over their equity in the net assets at the dates of 
acquisition was not material and was fully written off when acquired.
 
b. Foreign Currency Translation
Foreign currency receivables and payables are translated at the year-end spot rates. The resulting exchange gains and 
losses are charged or credited to income.
    The assets and liabilities of the consolidated subsidiaries outside Japan are translated at the fiscal year-end rates of 
those companies, and the income and expense accounts of those companies are translated at the average rates of those 
companies.
    Differences arising from such translation are recorded in foreign currency translation adjustments and minority interests 
in net assets.

c. Cash Equivalents
For purposes of the consolidated statements of cash flows, highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or 
less are considered cash equivalents.

d. Marketable Securities and Investment Securities
Securities classified as available for sale and whose fair value is readily determinable are carried at fair value, with 
unrealized gains or losses included as a component of net assets, net of applicable taxes. Costs are determined by the 
moving-average method.
    Securities whose fair value is not readily determinable are carried at cost. Costs are determined by the moving-average 
method.

e. Derivative Instruments
Derivative instruments whose fair value is readily determinable are carried at fair value.
 
f. Inventories
Inventories of the Company and its domestic subsidiaries are stated at cost, determined by the moving-average method, 
and inventories of certain foreign subsidiaries are valued at the lower of cost based on the first-in first-out method or 
market. The book value of inventories of the Company and its domestic consolidated subsidiaries reflects a write-down 
due to declines in profitability.

g. Allowance for Doubtful Receivables
The allowance for doubtful receivables is provided at an estimated amount of probable bad debts plus an amount based on
past credit loss experience.

h. Depreciation
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is computed principally by the straight-line method based on the estimated 
useful lives of the respective assets. 
 
i. Reserve for Severance Payments and Employee Benefit Plans
Employees who terminate their service with the Companies are, under most circumstances, entitled to lump-sum 
severance payments determined by reference to their current basic rate of pay and length of service. The Company and 
certain consolidated subsidiaries have noncontributory pension plans for termination caused by age limit. 
 The Companies accounted for these liabilities based on the projected benefit obligations and plan assets at the balance 
sheet date. 
 Unrecognized actuarial gain and loss are amortized starting in the year following the year in which the gain or loss is 
recognized, primarily by the straight-line method over a period of 10 years, which is shorter than the average remaining 
service period of employees. 
Unapplied Accounting Standards

Accounting Standard for Retirement Benefits (Accounting Standards Board of Japan [ASBJ] Statement No. 26, May 17,  
2012) 

(1) Outline 
Actuarial gains and losses and prior service costs are required to be recognized in net assets at net of tax effects. 
Funded status is fully recognized as a liability or asset on the balance sheet. With respect to the amortization method of 
the expected benefit, the benefit formula basis is newly allowed as an option, in addition to the straight-line basis. In 
addition, the method for determining the discount rate has been amended. 

(2) Planned date of application 
The Company and its consolidated subsidiaries will adopt the accounting standards from the end of the fiscal year 
ending December 31, 2014. But, the amortization method of the expected benefit will be adopted from the beginning of 
the fiscal year ending December 31, 2015. The standard and guidance will not be applied retrospectively to financial 
statements in the prior years. 

(3) Effects of the application of the above accounting standards on consolidated financial statements
The effects on the consolidated financial statements of the Company in adopting these accounting standards are under 
evaluation. 

 
j. Allowance for Sales Returns
An allowance for sales returns is provided for losses incurred on the return of snow tires sold during the fiscal year but 
returned subsequent to the balance sheet date. The allowance is based on an estimate using the average rate of such 
returns in prior years. 
 
k. Income Taxes
Income taxes in Japan comprise a corporate tax, an enterprise tax and prefectural and municipal inhabitants’ taxes. 
    Provision is made for deferred income taxes arising from temporary differences between assets or liabilities for financial 
and tax reporting purposes. 
 
l. Revenue Recognition
Sales of products are recognized upon product shipments to customers. 
 
m. Research and Development Costs
Research and development costs are charged to income as incurred. 
 
n. Earnings per Share
Basic net income per share is computed by dividing net income available to common shareholders by the average number 
of common shares outstanding during each period. Diluted net income per share is not disclosed because there were no 
dilutive securities in the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012. 
 
(Change in Accounting Policies)
Change in accounting method for depreciation of property, plant and equipment
The Company changed its accounting method for the depreciation of property, plant and equipment (except for buildings 
and the Onomichi plant) from the declining-balance method to the straight-line method, beginning in the fiscal year ended 

elsewhere in Asia, the Company plans to continue to maintain and renovate its production operations in Japan. 

those that best reflect current conditions. 
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    Management believes that the Company’s existing facilities in Japan will continue to be utilized stably across all 
businesses. Referring to the details of capital investment plans, management also expects that these facilities will continue 
to be useful in the future, as it deems the majority of the facilities will operate stably and contribute to earnings over the 
long term. Management has therefore decided that the straight-line method of depreciation for production facilities in 
Japan is the most appropriate cost allocation method for the statement of operations. 
    As a consequence of this change in accounting method for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, operating income, 
ordinary income and income before income taxes and minority interests increased ¥3,765 million ($35,722 thousand) 
compared with the previous accounting method.

3. Inventories
Inventories at December 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:  
  

   

Finished products
Work in process  
Raw materials and supplies  
  

  
  
4. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt at December 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:  
  

   
 

1.688% straight bonds due 2013  
1.68% straight bonds due 2014  
0.509% straight bonds due 2020  
Loans, principally from banks and  
   insurance companies

  
Less current maturities  
  

  
Assets pledged to secure bank loans and long-term debt at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:  
  

 

Property, plant and equipment

5. Depreciation and Amortization 
Depreciation and amortization expenses for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, were allocated as follows: 
 

  
  
  
Selling, general and administrative expenses  
Manufacturing costs  
  

  
6. Notes Maturing on December 31, 2013 and 2012
Because December 31, 2013 and 2012, which was the account closing date, was a nonbusiness day for financial 
institutions, notes receivable and payable maturing on that date were settled on the following business day. However, the 
Company recognized notes receivable and payable that matured on the date as being settled. Information on notes 
receivable and payable treated as settled was as follows:  
  

  
  
Notes receivable  
Notes payable  
Other current liabilities (notes payable—facilities)  

  
  
7. Contingent Liabilities 
Contingent liabilities at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

 
Guarantees  

  
  
8. Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses charged to manufacturing costs and to selling, general and administrative expenses 
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, were ¥12,633 million ($119,865 thousand) and ¥12,825 million, 
respectively.  
  
  
9. Business Structure Improvement Expenses
Business structure improvement expenses charged to the others segment for structure improvement included impairment 
loss etc. of ¥545 million ($5,177 thousand) for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ 63,009 
  7,273 
  20,743 

    ¥ 91,025 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 52,757 
  7,110 
  19,124 

    ¥ 78,991 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    $ 597,864 
  69,008 
  196,821 

    $ 863,693 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

        ¥ 712 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 2,165 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

        $ 6,760 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ — 
  10,000 
  10,000 

  63,629 

  83,629 
  31,825 

    ¥ 51,804 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 10,000 
  10,000 
  — 

  52,547 

  72,547 
  19,205 

    ¥ 53,342 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    $ — 
  94,886 
  94,886 

  603,745 

  793,517 
  301,975 

    $ 491,542 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

    ¥ 2,840 
  21,142 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

    ¥ 2,741 
  22,266 

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

    $ 26,944 
  200,615 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

         ¥ 899 
  868 
  188 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

      ¥ 1,253 
  1,375 
  132 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

        $ 8,526 
  8,236 
  1,787 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

      ¥ 3,059 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

      ¥ 2,941 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

      $ 29,030 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars
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    Management believes that the Company’s existing facilities in Japan will continue to be utilized stably across all 
businesses. Referring to the details of capital investment plans, management also expects that these facilities will continue 
to be useful in the future, as it deems the majority of the facilities will operate stably and contribute to earnings over the 
long term. Management has therefore decided that the straight-line method of depreciation for production facilities in 
Japan is the most appropriate cost allocation method for the statement of operations. 
    As a consequence of this change in accounting method for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, operating income, 
ordinary income and income before income taxes and minority interests increased ¥3,765 million ($35,722 thousand) 
compared with the previous accounting method.

3. Inventories
Inventories at December 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:  
  

   

Finished products
Work in process  
Raw materials and supplies  
  

  
  
4. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt at December 31, 2013 and 2012, consisted of the following:  
  

   
 

1.688% straight bonds due 2013  
1.68% straight bonds due 2014  
0.509% straight bonds due 2020  
Loans, principally from banks and  
   insurance companies

  
Less current maturities  
  

  
Assets pledged to secure bank loans and long-term debt at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:  
  

 

Property, plant and equipment

5. Depreciation and Amortization 
Depreciation and amortization expenses for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, were allocated as follows: 
 

  
  
  
Selling, general and administrative expenses  
Manufacturing costs  
  

  
6. Notes Maturing on December 31, 2013 and 2012
Because December 31, 2013 and 2012, which was the account closing date, was a nonbusiness day for financial 
institutions, notes receivable and payable maturing on that date were settled on the following business day. However, the 
Company recognized notes receivable and payable that matured on the date as being settled. Information on notes 
receivable and payable treated as settled was as follows:  
  

  
  
Notes receivable  
Notes payable  
Other current liabilities (notes payable—facilities)  

  
  
7. Contingent Liabilities 
Contingent liabilities at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

 
Guarantees  

  
  
8. Research and Development Expenses
Research and development expenses charged to manufacturing costs and to selling, general and administrative expenses 
for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, were ¥12,633 million ($119,865 thousand) and ¥12,825 million, 
respectively.  
  
  
9. Business Structure Improvement Expenses
Business structure improvement expenses charged to the others segment for structure improvement included impairment 
loss etc. of ¥545 million ($5,177 thousand) for the year ended December 31, 2013. 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ 63,009 
  7,273 
  20,743 

    ¥ 91,025 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 52,757 
  7,110 
  19,124 

    ¥ 78,991 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    $ 597,864 
  69,008 
  196,821 

    $ 863,693 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

        ¥ 712 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 2,165 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

        $ 6,760 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ — 
  10,000 
  10,000 

  63,629 

  83,629 
  31,825 

    ¥ 51,804 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 10,000 
  10,000 
  — 

  52,547 

  72,547 
  19,205 

    ¥ 53,342 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    $ — 
  94,886 
  94,886 

  603,745 

  793,517 
  301,975 

    $ 491,542 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

    ¥ 2,840 
  21,142 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

    ¥ 2,741 
  22,266 

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

    $ 26,944 
  200,615 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

         ¥ 899 
  868 
  188 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

      ¥ 1,253 
  1,375 
  132 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

        $ 8,526 
  8,236 
  1,787 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

      ¥ 3,059 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

      ¥ 2,941 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

      $ 29,030 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars
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10. Impairment Loss
The Company groups fixed assets for impairment testing based on organizational units by products and services for the 
Company and by company units for consolidated subsidiaries.
    The Companies recognized impairment loss and wrote down the book value to the recoverable value and accounted for 
the diminution as impairment loss for the following group of assets:

Year ended December 31, 2013
  

    The recoverable value was calculated by discounting future cash flows at a rate of 10.2%. If negative future cash flows 
are estimated, the recoverable value will be evaluated as zero.

11. Retained Earnings and Dividends
The amount of retained earnings available for dividends under the Corporate Law of Japan is based on the amount stated 
in the unconsolidated financial statements of the Company. Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting held 
subsequent to the fiscal year for which the dividends are applicable.  
  
  
12. Supplementary Cash Flow Information
A reconciliation of cash and deposits presented in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
and of cash and cash equivalents reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012, was as follows:  

  
  
  
 Cash and deposits
 Time deposits with maturities of
       more than three months

 Cash and cash equivalents

  
13. Leases
Leased assets under finance lease agreements include molds and warehouse equipment. The depreciation of leased 
assets is computed by the straight-line method over the term of the leases.   
    Future lease obligations under noncancelable operating leases subsequent to December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as 
follows:  
  

  
  
Within one year  
After one year  

14. Financial Instruments
a. Policies for Financial Instruments

The Companies raise funds through bank loans and the issuance of corporate bonds, mainly in accordance with their 
capital investment plans for manufacturing and selling tires, and raise short-term working capital through commercial 
paper.

Derivative transactions are carried out to reduce risks, as mentioned below, and not for speculative trading.
   
b. Information and Risks Related to Financial Instruments 

Trade receivables, which are notes and accounts receivable, are subject to customer credit risk. Also, some trade 
receivables denominated in foreign currencies as a result of global business are subject to exchange rate fluctuation 
risk. Therefore, the Companies use forward exchange contracts for hedging purposes. 

Securities, principally corporate equities, are subject to market price fluctuation risk. 
Long-term loan receivable to an overseas subsidiary, is subject to price fluctuation risk and exchange rate 

fluctuation risk.
Trade liabilities, which are notes and accounts payable, are mostly due within one year. Some trade liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies in relation to imported raw materials are subject to exchange rate fluctuation risk. 
Bank loans and corporate bonds are for the purpose of capital investment. The longest maturity is seven years 

after December 31, 2013. Some of the bank loans and corporate bonds have floating interest rates and are subject to 
interest rate fluctuation risk. 

Derivative transactions are forward exchange contracts and currency swaps for the purpose of hedging against 
exchange rate fluctuation risk in relation to trade receivables, trade liabilities and long-term loan receivable denominated 
in foreign currencies, interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging against value fluctuation risk in relation to 
long-term loan receivable and interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging against interest rate fluctuation risk in 
relation to bank loans.

   
c. Risk Management of Financial Instruments 

(1) Credit Risk Management (Customer Credit Default)  
Under credit management standards, the Companies manage due dates and balances of trade receivables for 
customers to assess and reduce collection risks.

Derivative transactions are only carried out with highly rated financial institutions to reduce credit risks. 
The amounts of the largest credit risks as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, are indicated in the balance sheets as 

part of allowance for doubtful receivables.
   

(2) Market Risk Management (Fluctuation Risk of Foreign Currency Exchange Rates and Interest Rates and Others) 
The Company and some of its consolidated subsidiaries use forward exchange contracts and currency swaps to 
hedge against exchange rate fluctuation risk in connection with trade receivables and trade liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies. 

They assess the amount of risk monthly by currency. The Companies also use interest rate swaps to hedge 
against value fluctuation risk in connection with long-term loan receivable. Some consolidated subsidiaries also use 
interest swaps to hedge against interest rate fluctuation risk in connection with bank loans. 

The Companies regularly assess the fair market value of their holdings of securities issued by entities with which 
they have business relationships. They also assess the financial condition of the issuers of those securities and 
review the holdings in light of the status of their business relationships with the issuers. 

Derivative transactions are carried out under internal regulations that specify trading authority and limits, and 
details of transactions are reported to the responsible executive officers. Consolidated subsidiaries also manage 
their derivative transactions in accordance with the regulations.

   
(3) Liquidity Risk in Fund-Raising Management (Risk of Being Unable to Make Payment at Due Date) 

Based on reports from each department, the corporate finance and accounting department prepares a cash flow 
plan and revises as appropriate to reduce liquidity risk. 

   
d. Supplementary Information About the Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The fair value of financial instruments is the market price or, for instruments that do not have a market price, a value 
calculated by appropriate means. The calculation of fair values incorporates variables, and the values are therefore 
subject to change, depending on diverse factors. The contract amounts for derivative transactions cited in “17. 
Derivative Instruments” do not indicate the market risk related to derivative transactions.

Millions of Yen

¥1,956

Location

Japan and Asia

Classification

Buildings, Structures, Machinery, etc.

Description

Business assets

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

$18,562

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ 37,179 

  (1,316)

    ¥ 35,863 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 21,400 

  (285)

    ¥ 21,115 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    $ 352,775 

  (12,488)

    $ 340,287 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

      ¥ 1,205 
  2,789 

      ¥ 3,994 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

      ¥ 897 
  2,424 

      ¥ 3,321 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

      $ 11,434 
  26,465 

      $ 37,899 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars
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10. Impairment Loss
The Company groups fixed assets for impairment testing based on organizational units by products and services for the 
Company and by company units for consolidated subsidiaries.
    The Companies recognized impairment loss and wrote down the book value to the recoverable value and accounted for 
the diminution as impairment loss for the following group of assets:

Year ended December 31, 2013
  

    The recoverable value was calculated by discounting future cash flows at a rate of 10.2%. If negative future cash flows 
are estimated, the recoverable value will be evaluated as zero.

11. Retained Earnings and Dividends
The amount of retained earnings available for dividends under the Corporate Law of Japan is based on the amount stated 
in the unconsolidated financial statements of the Company. Dividends are approved by the shareholders at a meeting held 
subsequent to the fiscal year for which the dividends are applicable.  
  
  
12. Supplementary Cash Flow Information
A reconciliation of cash and deposits presented in the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, 
and of cash and cash equivalents reported in the consolidated statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012, was as follows:  

  
  
  
 Cash and deposits
 Time deposits with maturities of
       more than three months

 Cash and cash equivalents

  
13. Leases
Leased assets under finance lease agreements include molds and warehouse equipment. The depreciation of leased 
assets is computed by the straight-line method over the term of the leases.   
    Future lease obligations under noncancelable operating leases subsequent to December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as 
follows:  
  

  
  
Within one year  
After one year  

14. Financial Instruments
a. Policies for Financial Instruments

The Companies raise funds through bank loans and the issuance of corporate bonds, mainly in accordance with their 
capital investment plans for manufacturing and selling tires, and raise short-term working capital through commercial 
paper.

Derivative transactions are carried out to reduce risks, as mentioned below, and not for speculative trading.
   
b. Information and Risks Related to Financial Instruments 

Trade receivables, which are notes and accounts receivable, are subject to customer credit risk. Also, some trade 
receivables denominated in foreign currencies as a result of global business are subject to exchange rate fluctuation 
risk. Therefore, the Companies use forward exchange contracts for hedging purposes. 

Securities, principally corporate equities, are subject to market price fluctuation risk. 
Long-term loan receivable to an overseas subsidiary, is subject to price fluctuation risk and exchange rate 

fluctuation risk.
Trade liabilities, which are notes and accounts payable, are mostly due within one year. Some trade liabilities 

denominated in foreign currencies in relation to imported raw materials are subject to exchange rate fluctuation risk. 
Bank loans and corporate bonds are for the purpose of capital investment. The longest maturity is seven years 

after December 31, 2013. Some of the bank loans and corporate bonds have floating interest rates and are subject to 
interest rate fluctuation risk. 

Derivative transactions are forward exchange contracts and currency swaps for the purpose of hedging against 
exchange rate fluctuation risk in relation to trade receivables, trade liabilities and long-term loan receivable denominated 
in foreign currencies, interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging against value fluctuation risk in relation to 
long-term loan receivable and interest rate swaps for the purpose of hedging against interest rate fluctuation risk in 
relation to bank loans.

   
c. Risk Management of Financial Instruments 

(1) Credit Risk Management (Customer Credit Default)  
Under credit management standards, the Companies manage due dates and balances of trade receivables for 
customers to assess and reduce collection risks.

Derivative transactions are only carried out with highly rated financial institutions to reduce credit risks. 
The amounts of the largest credit risks as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, are indicated in the balance sheets as 

part of allowance for doubtful receivables.
   

(2) Market Risk Management (Fluctuation Risk of Foreign Currency Exchange Rates and Interest Rates and Others) 
The Company and some of its consolidated subsidiaries use forward exchange contracts and currency swaps to 
hedge against exchange rate fluctuation risk in connection with trade receivables and trade liabilities denominated in 
foreign currencies. 

They assess the amount of risk monthly by currency. The Companies also use interest rate swaps to hedge 
against value fluctuation risk in connection with long-term loan receivable. Some consolidated subsidiaries also use 
interest swaps to hedge against interest rate fluctuation risk in connection with bank loans. 

The Companies regularly assess the fair market value of their holdings of securities issued by entities with which 
they have business relationships. They also assess the financial condition of the issuers of those securities and 
review the holdings in light of the status of their business relationships with the issuers. 

Derivative transactions are carried out under internal regulations that specify trading authority and limits, and 
details of transactions are reported to the responsible executive officers. Consolidated subsidiaries also manage 
their derivative transactions in accordance with the regulations.

   
(3) Liquidity Risk in Fund-Raising Management (Risk of Being Unable to Make Payment at Due Date) 

Based on reports from each department, the corporate finance and accounting department prepares a cash flow 
plan and revises as appropriate to reduce liquidity risk. 

   
d. Supplementary Information About the Fair Value of Financial Instruments 

The fair value of financial instruments is the market price or, for instruments that do not have a market price, a value 
calculated by appropriate means. The calculation of fair values incorporates variables, and the values are therefore 
subject to change, depending on diverse factors. The contract amounts for derivative transactions cited in “17. 
Derivative Instruments” do not indicate the market risk related to derivative transactions.

Millions of Yen

¥1,956

Location

Japan and Asia

Classification

Buildings, Structures, Machinery, etc.

Description

Business assets

Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

$18,562

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ 37,179 

  (1,316)

    ¥ 35,863 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 21,400 

  (285)

    ¥ 21,115 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    $ 352,775 

  (12,488)

    $ 340,287 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

      ¥ 1,205 
  2,789 

      ¥ 3,994 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

      ¥ 897 
  2,424 

      ¥ 3,321 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

      $ 11,434 
  26,465 

      $ 37,899 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars



54 55

e. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The book value and fair value of financial instruments and the differences between them as of December 31, 2013 and 
2012, were as follows. 

However, financial instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to ascertain are not included in the table below 
(see Note 2 to the table).

(1) Cash and deposits
(2) Trade receivables: Notes and accounts
(3) Investment securities
(4) Long-term loans receivable

Total assets

(1) Trade notes and accounts payable
(2) Electronically recorded obligations—operating
(3) Short-term loans payable
(4) Accrued expenses
(5) Commercial paper
(6) Bonds
(7) Long-term loans payable
(8) Long-term deposits received

Total liabilities

Derivative transactions*

(1) Cash and deposits
(2) Trade receivables: Notes and accounts
(3) Investment securities
(4) Long-term loans receivable

Total assets

(1) Trade notes and accounts payable
(2) Electronically recorded obligations-operating
(3) Short-term loans payable
(4) Accrued expenses
(5) Commercial paper
(6) Bonds
(7) Long-term loans payable
(8) Long-term deposits received

Total liabilities

Derivative transactions*
   

*The net amount of the assets and liabilities arising from derivatives is shown. If the net amount is a liability, it is presented in parentheses.

   
Note 1. Method of determining the fair value of financial instruments and securities and derivative transactions 
   
Assets
(1) Cash and deposits and (2) trade receivables: Notes and accounts 

The fair value of these assets is approximately equivalent to their book values because of short-term settlement, so 
the book values are indicated. 

(3) Investment securities 
The fair value of securities is based on the market price on stock exchanges. 

See “16. Securities” regarding the differences between the amounts booked on the consolidated balance sheets 
and the acquisition costs.

   
(4) Long-term loans receivable 

The fair value of long-term loans receivable is calculated based on the present value of the sum of principal and 
interest, which are handled together with the interest rate swaps, discounted by an interest rate determined taking 
into account the remaining period of the loan and credit risk, because such long-term loans receivable is subject to 
the special treatment for interest rate swaps.

Liabilities
(1) Trade notes and accounts payable, (2) electronically recorded obligations-operating, (3) short-term loans payable, 
(4) accrued expenses, and (5) commercial paper 

The fair value of these liabilities is approximately equivalent to their book values because of short-term settlement, so 
the book values are indicated.

 
(6) Bonds

The fair value of bonds is calculated based on the present value of the sum of principal and interest discounted by an 
interest rate determined taking into account the remaining period of each bond and credit risk.

 
(7) Long-term loans payable

The fair value of long-term loans payable is calculated based on the present value of the sum of principal and interest 
discounted by an interest rate determined taking into account the remaining period of each loan and credit risk.

 
(8) Long-term deposits received 

The fair value of long-term deposits received is calculated based on the present value of the sum of principal and 
interest, which are handled together with the currency swaps, discounted by an interest rate determined taking into 
account the remaining period of each deposit and credit risk, because such long-term deposits received are subject 
to the allocation method for currency swaps.

 
Derivative transactions

See “17. Derivative Instruments.” 
 
Note 2. Financial instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to ascertain were as follows:

 

 
 

 
Unlisted stock and others

Note: These financial instruments are not included in “(3) Investment securities.” It is extremely difficult to ascertain the 
fair values because they do not have market prices.

 
Note 3. The amount of monetary claims and securities with maturities to be redeemed after the consolidated closing 

date was as follows:
 
 

 
 
Deposits
Trade receivables: Notes and accounts

Total

  ¥ 37,179 
  167,831 
  92,721 
  2,460 

  300,191 

  76,718 
  6,871 
  79,623 
  33,916 
  12,000 
  20,000 
  63,629 
  639 

  293,396 

  (709)

  ¥ 37,179 
  167,831 
  92,721 
  2,460 

  300,191 

  76,718 
  6,871 
  79,623 
  33,916 
  12,000 
  19,570 
  64,151 
  643 

  293,492 

  (709)

  ¥ 21,400 
  148,098 
  60,098 
  — 

  229,596 

  77,601 
  2,800 
  73,738 
  28,543 
  — 
  20,000 
  52,547 
  3,194 

  258,423 

  (969)

  ¥ 21,400 
  148,098 
  60,098 
  — 

  229,596 

  77,601 
  2,800 
  73,738 
  28,543 
  — 
  20,202 
  52,949 
  3,565 

  259,398 

  (969)

    ¥ — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  — 

  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  (430)
  522 
  4 

  96 

  — 

    ¥ — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  — 

  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  202 
  402 
  371 

  975 

  — 

Millions of Yen

Book Value Fair Value Difference Book Value Fair Value Difference

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

   $ 352,775 
  1,592,477 
  879,789 
  23,338 

  2,848,379 

  727,946 
  65,192 
  755,505 
  321,816 
  113,863 
  189,772 
  603,745 
  6,071 

  2,783,910 

  (6,726)

   $ 352,775 
  1,592,477 
  879,789 
  23,338 

  2,848,379 

  727,946 
  65,192 
  755,505 
  321,816 
  113,863 
  185,691 
  608,694 
  6,113 

  2,784,820 

  (6,726)

    $ — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  — 

  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  (4,081)
  4,949 
  42 

  910 

  — 

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Book Value Fair Value Difference

2013
(12.31.13)

Thousands of
U.S. DollarsMillions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. DollarsMillions of Yen

Book Value Book Value Book Value

Within One Year Within One Year Within One Year

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

        ¥ 6,916 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

        ¥ 7,213 

  2013
  (12.31.13)

       $ 65,627

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ 36,693 
  167,831 

    ¥ 204,524 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 19,916 
  148,098 

    ¥ 168,014 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

 $ 348,163 
  1,592,477 

 $ 1,940,640 
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e. Fair Value of Financial Instruments 
The book value and fair value of financial instruments and the differences between them as of December 31, 2013 and 
2012, were as follows. 

However, financial instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to ascertain are not included in the table below 
(see Note 2 to the table).

(1) Cash and deposits
(2) Trade receivables: Notes and accounts
(3) Investment securities
(4) Long-term loans receivable

Total assets

(1) Trade notes and accounts payable
(2) Electronically recorded obligations—operating
(3) Short-term loans payable
(4) Accrued expenses
(5) Commercial paper
(6) Bonds
(7) Long-term loans payable
(8) Long-term deposits received

Total liabilities

Derivative transactions*

(1) Cash and deposits
(2) Trade receivables: Notes and accounts
(3) Investment securities
(4) Long-term loans receivable

Total assets

(1) Trade notes and accounts payable
(2) Electronically recorded obligations-operating
(3) Short-term loans payable
(4) Accrued expenses
(5) Commercial paper
(6) Bonds
(7) Long-term loans payable
(8) Long-term deposits received

Total liabilities

Derivative transactions*
   

*The net amount of the assets and liabilities arising from derivatives is shown. If the net amount is a liability, it is presented in parentheses.

   
Note 1. Method of determining the fair value of financial instruments and securities and derivative transactions 
   
Assets
(1) Cash and deposits and (2) trade receivables: Notes and accounts 

The fair value of these assets is approximately equivalent to their book values because of short-term settlement, so 
the book values are indicated. 

(3) Investment securities 
The fair value of securities is based on the market price on stock exchanges. 

See “16. Securities” regarding the differences between the amounts booked on the consolidated balance sheets 
and the acquisition costs.

   
(4) Long-term loans receivable 

The fair value of long-term loans receivable is calculated based on the present value of the sum of principal and 
interest, which are handled together with the interest rate swaps, discounted by an interest rate determined taking 
into account the remaining period of the loan and credit risk, because such long-term loans receivable is subject to 
the special treatment for interest rate swaps.

Liabilities
(1) Trade notes and accounts payable, (2) electronically recorded obligations-operating, (3) short-term loans payable, 
(4) accrued expenses, and (5) commercial paper 

The fair value of these liabilities is approximately equivalent to their book values because of short-term settlement, so 
the book values are indicated.

 
(6) Bonds

The fair value of bonds is calculated based on the present value of the sum of principal and interest discounted by an 
interest rate determined taking into account the remaining period of each bond and credit risk.

 
(7) Long-term loans payable

The fair value of long-term loans payable is calculated based on the present value of the sum of principal and interest 
discounted by an interest rate determined taking into account the remaining period of each loan and credit risk.

 
(8) Long-term deposits received 

The fair value of long-term deposits received is calculated based on the present value of the sum of principal and 
interest, which are handled together with the currency swaps, discounted by an interest rate determined taking into 
account the remaining period of each deposit and credit risk, because such long-term deposits received are subject 
to the allocation method for currency swaps.

 
Derivative transactions

See “17. Derivative Instruments.” 
 
Note 2. Financial instruments whose fair value is extremely difficult to ascertain were as follows:

 

 
 

 
Unlisted stock and others

Note: These financial instruments are not included in “(3) Investment securities.” It is extremely difficult to ascertain the 
fair values because they do not have market prices.

 
Note 3. The amount of monetary claims and securities with maturities to be redeemed after the consolidated closing 

date was as follows:
 
 

 
 
Deposits
Trade receivables: Notes and accounts

Total

  ¥ 37,179 
  167,831 
  92,721 
  2,460 

  300,191 

  76,718 
  6,871 
  79,623 
  33,916 
  12,000 
  20,000 
  63,629 
  639 

  293,396 

  (709)

  ¥ 37,179 
  167,831 
  92,721 
  2,460 

  300,191 

  76,718 
  6,871 
  79,623 
  33,916 
  12,000 
  19,570 
  64,151 
  643 

  293,492 

  (709)

  ¥ 21,400 
  148,098 
  60,098 
  — 

  229,596 

  77,601 
  2,800 
  73,738 
  28,543 
  — 
  20,000 
  52,547 
  3,194 

  258,423 

  (969)

  ¥ 21,400 
  148,098 
  60,098 
  — 

  229,596 

  77,601 
  2,800 
  73,738 
  28,543 
  — 
  20,202 
  52,949 
  3,565 

  259,398 

  (969)

    ¥ — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  — 

  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  (430)
  522 
  4 

  96 

  — 

    ¥ — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  — 

  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  202 
  402 
  371 

  975 

  — 

Millions of Yen

Book Value Fair Value Difference Book Value Fair Value Difference

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

   $ 352,775 
  1,592,477 
  879,789 
  23,338 

  2,848,379 

  727,946 
  65,192 
  755,505 
  321,816 
  113,863 
  189,772 
  603,745 
  6,071 

  2,783,910 

  (6,726)

   $ 352,775 
  1,592,477 
  879,789 
  23,338 

  2,848,379 

  727,946 
  65,192 
  755,505 
  321,816 
  113,863 
  185,691 
  608,694 
  6,113 

  2,784,820 

  (6,726)

    $ — 
  — 
  — 
  — 

  — 

  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  — 
  (4,081)
  4,949 
  42 

  910 

  — 

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Book Value Fair Value Difference

2013
(12.31.13)

Thousands of
U.S. DollarsMillions of Yen

Thousands of
U.S. DollarsMillions of Yen

Book Value Book Value Book Value

Within One Year Within One Year Within One Year

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

        ¥ 6,916 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

        ¥ 7,213 

  2013
  (12.31.13)

       $ 65,627

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ 36,693 
  167,831 

    ¥ 204,524 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 19,916 
  148,098 

    ¥ 168,014 

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

 $ 348,163 
  1,592,477 

 $ 1,940,640 
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Note 4. The amount of bonds, long-term loans payable and other liabilities with interest to be repaid after the consolidated 
closing date was as follows:

15. Other Comprehensive Income
Reclassification adjustments and tax effects allocated to each component of other comprehensive income for the years 
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Unrealized gains on securities
  Arising during the year
  Amount of recycling

      Before tax-effect adjustment
      Amount of tax effect

      Unrealized gains on securities

Foreign currency translation adjustments
  Arising during the year

Adjustment related to pension obligations of consolidated overseas subsidiaries
  Arising during the year
  Amount of recycling

      Before tax-effect adjustment
      Amount of tax effect

      Adjustment related to pension obligations of consolidated overseas subsidiaries

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
    by the equity method
  Arising during the year

Total other comprehensive income

16. Securities
Cost, carrying amount and unrealized gains and losses pertaining to available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2013 and 
2012, were as follows:

Sales of securities classified as available-for-sale securities and the aggregate gains or losses for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, are immaterial. 
  
Note: Unlisted stocks, whose book value as of December 31, 2013, on the consolidated balance sheet is ¥1,305 million 
($12,387 thousand), are not included in the above table. It is extremely difficult to ascertain fair value for lack of market 
price. 

 ¥ 10,000 
  21,825 
  79,623 

 ¥ 111,448 

Bonds 
Long-term loans payable 
Other liabilities with interest 

 Total

Millions of Yen

Within One
Year

   ¥ — 
  23,006 
  639 

   ¥ 23,645 

Over One
Year, Within
Two Years

   ¥ — 
  12,753 
  — 

   ¥ 12,753 

Over Two
Years, Within
Three Years

     ¥ — 
  4,215 
  — 

     ¥ 4,215 

Over Three
Years, Within
Four Years

     ¥ — 
  1,405 
  — 

     ¥ 1,405 

Over Four
Years, Within

Five Years

   ¥ 10,000 
  425 
  — 

   ¥ 10,425 

Over Five
Years

2013
(12.31.13)

   ¥ 10,000 
  9,205 
  73,738 

   ¥ 92,943 

Bonds 
Long-term loans payable 
Other liabilities with interest 

 Total

Millions of Yen

Within One
Year

   ¥ 10,000 
  24,226 
  — 

   ¥ 34,226 

Over One
Year, Within
Two Years

   ¥ — 
  11,701 
  3,194 

   ¥ 14,895 

Over Two
Years, Within
Three Years

     ¥ — 
  7,380 
  — 

     ¥ 7,380 

Over Three
Years, Within
Four Years

        ¥ — 
  12 
  — 

        ¥ 12 

Over Four
Years, Within

Five Years

        ¥ — 
  24 
  — 

        ¥ 24 

Over Five
Years

2012
(12.31.12)

$  94,886 
  207,089 
  755,505 

$  1,057,480 

Bonds 
Long-term loans payable 
Other liabilities with interest 

 Total

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Within One
Year

 $ — 
  218,293 
  6,061 

 $ 224,354 

Over One
Year, Within
Two Years

 $ — 
  121,009 
  — 

 $ 121,009 

Over Two
Years, Within
Three Years

   $ — 
  39,992 
  — 

   $ 39,992 

Over Three
Years, Within
Four Years

   $ — 
  13,334 
  — 

   $ 13,334 

Over Four
Years, Within

Five Years

   $ 94,886 
  4,029 
  — 

   $ 98,915 

Over Five
Years

2013
(12.31.13)

Millions of Yen

¥ (870)

Unrealized
Losses

¥ 32,308

Unrealized
Gains

¥ 60,098

Carrying
Amount

¥ 28,660

Cost

¥ (195)

Unrealized
Losses

¥ 59,745

Unrealized
Gains

¥ 92,722

Carrying
Amount

¥ 33,172

Cost

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

     ¥ 28,256 
  — 

  28,256 
  9,988 

  18,268 

 
  19,702 
 

  1,065 
  656 

  1,721 
  703 

  1,018 

  317 

     ¥ 39,305 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

 
     ¥ 13,847 
  — 

  13,847 
  4,835 

  9,012 
 

  12,093 

  (1,552)
  685 

  (867)
  (340)

  (527)

  149 

     ¥ 20,727 

  2013
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

    $ 268,110
  — 

  268,110
  94,770

  173,340

  186,938

  10,109 
  6,223 

  16,332
  6,672

  9,660

  3,010

    $ 372,948

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

Securities classified as
available for sale:

Stock

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

$ (1,849)

Unrealized
Losses

$ 566,895

Unrealized
Gains

$ 879,799

Carrying
Amount

$ 314,753

Cost

2013
(12.31.13)

Securities classified as
available for sale:

Stock
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Note 4. The amount of bonds, long-term loans payable and other liabilities with interest to be repaid after the consolidated 
closing date was as follows:

15. Other Comprehensive Income
Reclassification adjustments and tax effects allocated to each component of other comprehensive income for the years 
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Unrealized gains on securities
  Arising during the year
  Amount of recycling

      Before tax-effect adjustment
      Amount of tax effect

      Unrealized gains on securities

Foreign currency translation adjustments
  Arising during the year

Adjustment related to pension obligations of consolidated overseas subsidiaries
  Arising during the year
  Amount of recycling

      Before tax-effect adjustment
      Amount of tax effect

      Adjustment related to pension obligations of consolidated overseas subsidiaries

Share of other comprehensive income of associates accounted for
    by the equity method
  Arising during the year

Total other comprehensive income

16. Securities
Cost, carrying amount and unrealized gains and losses pertaining to available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2013 and 
2012, were as follows:

Sales of securities classified as available-for-sale securities and the aggregate gains or losses for the years ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, are immaterial. 
  
Note: Unlisted stocks, whose book value as of December 31, 2013, on the consolidated balance sheet is ¥1,305 million 
($12,387 thousand), are not included in the above table. It is extremely difficult to ascertain fair value for lack of market 
price. 

 ¥ 10,000 
  21,825 
  79,623 

 ¥ 111,448 

Bonds 
Long-term loans payable 
Other liabilities with interest 

 Total

Millions of Yen

Within One
Year

   ¥ — 
  23,006 
  639 

   ¥ 23,645 

Over One
Year, Within
Two Years

   ¥ — 
  12,753 
  — 

   ¥ 12,753 

Over Two
Years, Within
Three Years

     ¥ — 
  4,215 
  — 

     ¥ 4,215 

Over Three
Years, Within
Four Years

     ¥ — 
  1,405 
  — 

     ¥ 1,405 

Over Four
Years, Within

Five Years

   ¥ 10,000 
  425 
  — 

   ¥ 10,425 

Over Five
Years

2013
(12.31.13)

   ¥ 10,000 
  9,205 
  73,738 

   ¥ 92,943 

Bonds 
Long-term loans payable 
Other liabilities with interest 

 Total

Millions of Yen

Within One
Year

   ¥ 10,000 
  24,226 
  — 

   ¥ 34,226 

Over One
Year, Within
Two Years

   ¥ — 
  11,701 
  3,194 

   ¥ 14,895 

Over Two
Years, Within
Three Years

     ¥ — 
  7,380 
  — 

     ¥ 7,380 

Over Three
Years, Within
Four Years

        ¥ — 
  12 
  — 

        ¥ 12 

Over Four
Years, Within

Five Years

        ¥ — 
  24 
  — 

        ¥ 24 

Over Five
Years

2012
(12.31.12)

$  94,886 
  207,089 
  755,505 

$  1,057,480 

Bonds 
Long-term loans payable 
Other liabilities with interest 

 Total

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Within One
Year

 $ — 
  218,293 
  6,061 

 $ 224,354 

Over One
Year, Within
Two Years

 $ — 
  121,009 
  — 

 $ 121,009 

Over Two
Years, Within
Three Years

   $ — 
  39,992 
  — 

   $ 39,992 

Over Three
Years, Within
Four Years

   $ — 
  13,334 
  — 

   $ 13,334 

Over Four
Years, Within

Five Years

   $ 94,886 
  4,029 
  — 

   $ 98,915 

Over Five
Years

2013
(12.31.13)

Millions of Yen

¥ (870)

Unrealized
Losses

¥ 32,308

Unrealized
Gains

¥ 60,098

Carrying
Amount

¥ 28,660

Cost

¥ (195)

Unrealized
Losses

¥ 59,745

Unrealized
Gains

¥ 92,722

Carrying
Amount

¥ 33,172

Cost

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

     ¥ 28,256 
  — 

  28,256 
  9,988 

  18,268 

 
  19,702 
 

  1,065 
  656 

  1,721 
  703 

  1,018 

  317 

     ¥ 39,305 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

 
     ¥ 13,847 
  — 

  13,847 
  4,835 

  9,012 
 

  12,093 

  (1,552)
  685 

  (867)
  (340)

  (527)

  149 

     ¥ 20,727 

  2013
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

    $ 268,110
  — 

  268,110
  94,770

  173,340

  186,938

  10,109 
  6,223 

  16,332
  6,672

  9,660

  3,010

    $ 372,948

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

Securities classified as
available for sale:

Stock

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

$ (1,849)

Unrealized
Losses

$ 566,895

Unrealized
Gains

$ 879,799

Carrying
Amount

$ 314,753

Cost

2013
(12.31.13)

Securities classified as
available for sale:

Stock
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17. Derivative Instruments
1. Fair value information of derivative instruments, for which deferral hedge accounting has not been applied, at December 
31, 2013 and 2012, was as follows: 
(1) Currency derivatives

(2) Interest rate derivatives

2. Fair value information of derivative instruments, for which deferral hedge accounting has been applied, at December 31, 
2013 and 2012, was as follows: 
(1) Currency derivatives

 

*Amounts settled by the allocation method for currency swaps are handled together with those of the long-term deposits received, which are regarded 
as the hedged items. See “14. Financial Instruments” for their fair value.

(2) Interest rate derivatives

*Amounts settled by the special treatment for interest rate swaps are handled together with those of the long-term loans receivable, which is regarded 
as the hedged item. See “14. Financial Instruments” for the fair value.

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

 $ (1,247)
  (1,458)
  (2,575)
  (714)

  (732)

 $ (6,726)

Unrealized
Losses

  $ (1,247)
  (1,458)
  (2,575)
  (714)

  (732)

  $ (6,726)

Fair Value

$ 15,089 
  24,384 
  51,033 
  16,482 

  23,338 

$ 130,326 

Contract
Amount

     ¥ 436 
  227 
  118 
  188 

  — 

     ¥ 969 

Unrealized
Gains

     ¥ 436 
  227 
  118 
  188 

  — 

     ¥ 969 

Fair Value

 ¥ 3,905 
  1,958 
  1,956 
  2,596 

  — 

 ¥ 10,415 

Contract
Amount

    ¥ (131)
  (154)
  (271)
  (76)

  (77)

    ¥ (709)

Unrealized
Losses

    ¥ (131)
  (154)
  (271)
  (76)

  (77)

    ¥ (709)

Fair Value

 ¥ 1,590 
  2,570 
  5,378 
  1,737 

  2,460 

 ¥ 13,735 

Contract
Amount

Unrealized
LossesFair Value

Contract
Amount

Unrealized
LossesFair Value

Contract
Amount

Unrealized
LossesFair Value

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

Forward exchange 
 contracts:
  RUB
  EUR
  USD
  Others
 Currency swap contracts:
  JPY receipt
  INR payment

       $ (0)       $ —        $ 47        ¥ (0)        ¥ 5        ¥ 13        ¥ (0)      ¥ —         ¥ 5 

2013
(12.31.13)

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

Interest rate swap 
 contracts

Millions of Yen

  * 

Fair Value

  ¥ 3,194 

Over
One Year

  ¥ 3,194 

Contract
Amount

  * 

Fair Value

     ¥ 639 

Over
One Year

     ¥ 639 

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

Forward exchange contracts
 with allocation method:
Long-term deposits received

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

  * 

Fair Value

  $ 6,061 

Over
One Year

  $ 6,061 

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

Forward exchange contracts
 with allocation method:
Long-term deposits received

Millions of Yen

  * 

Fair Value

      ¥ — 

Over
One Year

      ¥ — 

Contract
Amount

  * 

Fair Value

  ¥ 2,460 

Over
One Year

  ¥ 2,460 

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

Interest rate swap contracts
 with special treatment:
Long-term loan receivable

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

  * 

Fair Value

 $ 23,338 

Over
One Year

 $ 23,338 

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

Interest rate swap contracts
 with special treatment:
Long-term loan receivable
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17. Derivative Instruments
1. Fair value information of derivative instruments, for which deferral hedge accounting has not been applied, at December 
31, 2013 and 2012, was as follows: 
(1) Currency derivatives

(2) Interest rate derivatives

2. Fair value information of derivative instruments, for which deferral hedge accounting has been applied, at December 31, 
2013 and 2012, was as follows: 
(1) Currency derivatives

 

*Amounts settled by the allocation method for currency swaps are handled together with those of the long-term deposits received, which are regarded 
as the hedged items. See “14. Financial Instruments” for their fair value.

(2) Interest rate derivatives

*Amounts settled by the special treatment for interest rate swaps are handled together with those of the long-term loans receivable, which is regarded 
as the hedged item. See “14. Financial Instruments” for the fair value.

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

Millions of Yen Thousands of U.S. Dollars

 $ (1,247)
  (1,458)
  (2,575)
  (714)

  (732)

 $ (6,726)

Unrealized
Losses

  $ (1,247)
  (1,458)
  (2,575)
  (714)

  (732)

  $ (6,726)

Fair Value

$ 15,089 
  24,384 
  51,033 
  16,482 

  23,338 

$ 130,326 

Contract
Amount

     ¥ 436 
  227 
  118 
  188 

  — 

     ¥ 969 

Unrealized
Gains

     ¥ 436 
  227 
  118 
  188 

  — 

     ¥ 969 

Fair Value

 ¥ 3,905 
  1,958 
  1,956 
  2,596 

  — 

 ¥ 10,415 

Contract
Amount

    ¥ (131)
  (154)
  (271)
  (76)

  (77)

    ¥ (709)

Unrealized
Losses

    ¥ (131)
  (154)
  (271)
  (76)

  (77)

    ¥ (709)

Fair Value

 ¥ 1,590 
  2,570 
  5,378 
  1,737 

  2,460 

 ¥ 13,735 

Contract
Amount

Unrealized
LossesFair Value

Contract
Amount

Unrealized
LossesFair Value

Contract
Amount

Unrealized
LossesFair Value

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

Forward exchange 
 contracts:
  RUB
  EUR
  USD
  Others
 Currency swap contracts:
  JPY receipt
  INR payment

       $ (0)       $ —        $ 47        ¥ (0)        ¥ 5        ¥ 13        ¥ (0)      ¥ —         ¥ 5 

2013
(12.31.13)

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

Interest rate swap 
 contracts

Millions of Yen

  * 

Fair Value

  ¥ 3,194 

Over
One Year

  ¥ 3,194 

Contract
Amount

  * 

Fair Value

     ¥ 639 

Over
One Year

     ¥ 639 

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

Forward exchange contracts
 with allocation method:
Long-term deposits received

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

  * 

Fair Value

  $ 6,061 

Over
One Year

  $ 6,061 

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

Forward exchange contracts
 with allocation method:
Long-term deposits received

Millions of Yen

  * 

Fair Value

      ¥ — 

Over
One Year

      ¥ — 

Contract
Amount

  * 

Fair Value

  ¥ 2,460 

Over
One Year

  ¥ 2,460 

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

2012
(12.31.12)

Interest rate swap contracts
 with special treatment:
Long-term loan receivable

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

  * 

Fair Value

 $ 23,338 

Over
One Year

 $ 23,338 

Contract
Amount

2013
(12.31.13)

Interest rate swap contracts
 with special treatment:
Long-term loan receivable
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18. Pension and Severance Plans
The projected benefit obligations, plan assets and composition of amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets 
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Projected benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Funded status
Unrecognized actuarial gain and loss 
Unrecognized prior service cost

Net amount recognized

The components of net pension and severance costs for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

 

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Recognized actuarial losses
Recognized prior service cost

Net periodic benefit cost

Contribution of defined contribution benefit plan

Assumptions used as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Discount rate
Expected return rate on plan assets 

19. Deferred Income Taxes
Significant components of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Deferred tax assets:  
Liabilities for pension and severance payments
Net operating loss carry forwards
Unrealized profits
Accrued expenses
Loss on revaluation of investment securities 
Other

Gross deferred tax assets
Less valuation allowance

Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:  

Unrealized gains on securities
Liabilities for pension and severance payments
Gain on receipt of stock set by pension plan 
Property, plant and equipment
Other

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

A reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012, was as follows:

Statutory income tax rates
Permanently nondeductible expenses
Permanently nontaxable income
Tax deduction for research and development
Valuation allowance
Other

Effective income tax rates

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

  ¥ (32,366)
  14,323 

  (18,043)
  (796)
  285 

  ¥ (18,554)

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

  ¥ (32,419)
  9,884 

  (22,535)
  3,561 
  273 

  ¥ (18,701)

  2013
  (12.31.13)

  mainly 1.6%
  0.00%

  2012
  (12.31.12)

  mainly 1.6%
  0.00%

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

   $ (307,102)
  135,908 

  (171,194)
  (7,554)
  2,693 

   $ (176,055)

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ 10,861 
  112 
  5,034 
  345 
  35 
  12,137 

  28,524 
  (545)

  27,979 

  (21,033)
  (3,019)
  (1,842)
  (1,229)
  (1,986)

  (29,109)

    ¥ (1,130)

  2012
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 10,966 
  200 
  4,600 
  984 
  34 
  10,494 

  27,278 
  (755)

  26,523 

  (11,072)
  (3,019)
  (1,842)
  (1,272)
  (1,579)

  (18,784)

    ¥ 7,739 

  2013
  (12.31.13)

    $ 103,058 
  1,065 
  47,769 
  3,272 
  329 
  115,163 

  270,656 
  (5,179)

  265,477 

  (199,575)
  (28,645)
  (17,476)
  (11,665)
  (18,839)

  (276,200)

    $ (10,723)

  2013  
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

  37.6%
  0.7   
  (0.6)  
  (1.9)  
  (0.4)  
  2.0   

  37.4%

  2012  
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

  40.3%
  0.7   
  (0.8)  
  (2.1)  
  (0.2)  
  (2.0)  

  35.9%

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

      ¥ 1,929 
  479 
  — 
  (230)
  100 

  2,278 

  619 

      ¥ 2,897 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

      ¥ 1,959 
  481 
  — 
  349 
  100 

  2,889 

  607 

      ¥ 3,496 

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

      $ 18,300 
  4,549 
  — 
  (2,178)
  946 

  21,617 

  5,870 

      $ 27,487 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars
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18. Pension and Severance Plans
The projected benefit obligations, plan assets and composition of amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheets 
at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Projected benefit obligations
Fair value of plan assets

Funded status
Unrecognized actuarial gain and loss 
Unrecognized prior service cost

Net amount recognized

The components of net pension and severance costs for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

 

Service cost
Interest cost
Expected return on plan assets
Recognized actuarial losses
Recognized prior service cost

Net periodic benefit cost

Contribution of defined contribution benefit plan

Assumptions used as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Discount rate
Expected return rate on plan assets 

19. Deferred Income Taxes
Significant components of the deferred income tax assets and liabilities at December 31, 2013 and 2012, were as follows:

Deferred tax assets:  
Liabilities for pension and severance payments
Net operating loss carry forwards
Unrealized profits
Accrued expenses
Loss on revaluation of investment securities 
Other

Gross deferred tax assets
Less valuation allowance

Total deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities:  

Unrealized gains on securities
Liabilities for pension and severance payments
Gain on receipt of stock set by pension plan 
Property, plant and equipment
Other

Total deferred tax liabilities

Net deferred tax assets (liabilities)

A reconciliation of the statutory income tax rate to the effective income tax rates for the years ended December 31, 2013
and 2012, was as follows:

Statutory income tax rates
Permanently nondeductible expenses
Permanently nontaxable income
Tax deduction for research and development
Valuation allowance
Other

Effective income tax rates

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

  ¥ (32,366)
  14,323 

  (18,043)
  (796)
  285 

  ¥ (18,554)

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

  ¥ (32,419)
  9,884 

  (22,535)
  3,561 
  273 

  ¥ (18,701)

  2013
  (12.31.13)

  mainly 1.6%
  0.00%

  2012
  (12.31.12)

  mainly 1.6%
  0.00%

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

   $ (307,102)
  135,908 

  (171,194)
  (7,554)
  2,693 

   $ (176,055)

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013
  (12.31.13)

    ¥ 10,861 
  112 
  5,034 
  345 
  35 
  12,137 

  28,524 
  (545)

  27,979 

  (21,033)
  (3,019)
  (1,842)
  (1,229)
  (1,986)

  (29,109)

    ¥ (1,130)

  2012
  (12.31.12)

    ¥ 10,966 
  200 
  4,600 
  984 
  34 
  10,494 

  27,278 
  (755)

  26,523 

  (11,072)
  (3,019)
  (1,842)
  (1,272)
  (1,579)

  (18,784)

    ¥ 7,739 

  2013
  (12.31.13)

    $ 103,058 
  1,065 
  47,769 
  3,272 
  329 
  115,163 

  270,656 
  (5,179)

  265,477 

  (199,575)
  (28,645)
  (17,476)
  (11,665)
  (18,839)

  (276,200)

    $ (10,723)

  2013  
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

  37.6%
  0.7   
  (0.6)  
  (1.9)  
  (0.4)  
  2.0   

  37.4%

  2012  
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

  40.3%
  0.7   
  (0.8)  
  (2.1)  
  (0.2)  
  (2.0)  

  35.9%

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

      ¥ 1,929 
  479 
  — 
  (230)
  100 

  2,278 

  619 

      ¥ 2,897 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

      ¥ 1,959 
  481 
  — 
  349 
  100 

  2,889 

  607 

      ¥ 3,496 

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

      $ 18,300 
  4,549 
  — 
  (2,178)
  946 

  21,617 

  5,870 

      $ 27,487 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars
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20. Segment Information 
a. Outline of Reportable Segments

The Company’s reportable segments are the organizational units for which the Company is able to obtain individual 
financial information in order for the Board of Directors to regularly review performance to determine the distribution of 
management resources and evaluate its business results.

The Company classifies organizational units by products and services. Each organizational unit plans domestic or 
overseas general strategies for its products and services and operates its business.

Therefore, the Company is organized by business segments, and its reportable segments are “Tires” and 
“Industrial Products.”

 
b. Methods of Calculating the Amount of Sales, Income (Loss), Assets and Other Items by Reportable 

Segments
Accounting methods for reportable segments are mostly the same as “2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”
Profits from reportable segments are operating income, and intersegment income and transfers are based on prevailing 
market prices.

 
c. Information on Sales, Income (Loss), Assets and Other Items by Reportable Segments

Information on sales, income (loss), assets and other items by reportable segments for the years ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012, was as follows:

Note 1. The “Others” category incorporates operations not included in reportable segments, including aircraft products 
and sports products. 
  
Note 2. Adjustments are as follows: 

(a) Segment income adjustments are the elimination of intersegment transactions.
(b) Segment asset adjustments for the year ended December 31, 2013, of ¥122 million ($1,160 thousand) were the 
elimination of intersegment transactions of ¥34,758 million ($329,802 thousand) and “corporate assets” of  ¥34,636 
million ($328,642 thousand). “Corporate assets” primarily consist of accumulated working capital and investments in 
securities.

  
Note 3. Segment income was adjusted with operating income presented in the consolidated statements of income. 

  
Information on change in reportable segments  

(Change in method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment)  
The Company applied the straight-line method from fiscal 2013 instead of the declining-balance method for the 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment.  

As a consequence of this change in accounting method for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, segment 
income increased ¥3,043 million ($28,875 thousand), ¥528 million ($5,011 thousand) and ¥194 million ($1,836 thousand) 
for Tires, Industrial Products and Others, respectively.

  
Related information for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012  
1.  Product and service information

Information has been omitted, as the classification is the same as that for reportable segments.
  
2.  Information about geographic areas 
(a) Sales

Japan
United States of America
Others

Total

Note: Sales are based on the location of clients and classified by country.

Sales to third parties 
Intergroup sales and transfers

Total sales

Segment income

Segment assets
Other items
 Depreciation and amortization
 Impairment loss
 Investment in equity method
     affiliates
 Increase of tangible and
     intangible fixed assets

Millions of Yen

  ¥ 601,630
   —

  601,630

  ¥ 56,647

  ¥ 653,584

  ¥ 23,982
  ¥ 1,956

  ¥ 1,843

  ¥ 33,505

Consolidated
Amount

  ¥ — 
  (5,461)

  (5,461)

  ¥ (19)

  ¥ (123)

  ¥ 300 
  ¥ — 

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 473 

Adjustments

 ¥ 601,630
  5,461

  607,091

 ¥ 56,666

 ¥ 653,707

 ¥ 23,682
 ¥ 1,956

 ¥ 1,843

 ¥ 33,032

Total

  ¥ 25,225
  3,496

  28,721

  ¥ 2,955

  ¥ 63,619

  ¥ 547
  ¥ 546

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 585

Others

 ¥ 576,405
  1,965

  578,370

 ¥ 53,711

 ¥ 590,088

 ¥ 23,135
 ¥ 1,410

 ¥ 1,843

 ¥ 32,447

Reportable
Segment

Total

  ¥ 96,883
  203

  97,086

  ¥ 7,690

  ¥ 66,129

  ¥ 2,034
  ¥ — 

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 3,073

Industrial
Products

 ¥ 479,522
  1,762

  481,284

 ¥ 46,021

 ¥ 523,959

 ¥ 21,101
 ¥ 1,410

 ¥ 1,843

 ¥ 29,374

Tires

2013 (01.01.13–12.31.13)

Sales to third parties 
Intergroup sales and transfers

Total sales

Segment income

Segment assets
Other items
 Depreciation and amortization
 Impairment loss
 Investment in equity method
     affiliates
 Increase of tangible and
     intangible fixed assets

Thousands of U.S. Dollars

 $ 5,708,603
  ̶ 

  5,708,603

 $ 537,499

 $ 6,201,579

 $ 227,559
 $ 18,562

 $ 17,488

 $ 317,916

Consolidated
Amount

 $ ̶ 
  (51,813)

  (51,813)

 $ (179)

 $ (1,161)

 $ 2,855 
 $ ̶ 

 $  ̶ 

 $ 4,486 

Adjustments

 $ 5,708,603
  51,813

  5,760,416

 $ 537,678

 $ 6,202,740

 $ 224,704
 $ 18,562

 $ 17,488

 $ 313,430

Total

 $ 239,343
  33,171

  272,514

 $ 28,038

 $ 603,655

 $ 5,190
 $ 5,187

 $ ̶ 

 $ 5,550

Others

 $ 5,469,260
 18,642

 5,487,902

 $ 509,640

 $ 5,599,085

 $ 219,514
 $ 13,375

 $ 17,488

 $ 307,880

Reportable
Segment

Total

 $ 919,278
  1,926

  921,204

 $ 72,964

 $ 627,471

 $ 19,297
 $  ̶ 

 $ ̶ 

 $ 29,162

Industrial
Products

 $ 4,549,982
  16,716

  4,566,698

 $ 436,676

 $ 4,971,614

 $ 200,217
 $ 13,375

 $ 17,488

 $ 278,718

Tires

2013 (01.01.13–12.31.13)

Sales to third parties 
Intergroup sales and transfers

Total sales

Segment income

Segment assets
Other items
 Depreciation and amortization
 Investment in equity method
     affiliates
 Increase of tangible and
     intangible fixed assets

  ¥ 559,700
  — 

  559,700

  ¥ 49,696

  ¥ 543,829

  ¥ 25,007

  ¥ 1,524

  ¥ 28,070

 ¥ — 
  (6,181)

  (6,181)

 ¥ (12)

 ¥ (9,156)

 ¥ 663 

 ¥ — 

 ¥ 640 

 ¥ 559,700
  6,181

  565,881

 ¥ 49,708

 ¥ 552,985

 ¥ 24,344

 ¥ 1,524

 ¥ 27,430

  ¥ 23,257
  4,238

  27,495

  ¥  1,252

  ¥ 58,436

  ¥ 732

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 588

 ¥ 536,443
  1,943

  538,386

 ¥ 48,456

 ¥ 494,549

 ¥ 23,612
 
 ¥ 1,524

 ¥ 26,842

  ¥ 91,851
  93

  91,944

  ¥ 5,087

  ¥ 60,908

  ¥ 2,632

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 1,836

 ¥ 444,592
  1,850

  446,442

 ¥ 43,369

 ¥ 433,641

 ¥ 20,980

 ¥ 1,524

 ¥ 25,006

2012 (01.01.12–12.31.12)

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

  ¥ 309,315 
  132,126 
  160,189 

  ¥ 601,630 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

  ¥ 308,918 
  110,997 
  139,785 

  ¥ 559,700 

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

 $ 2,934,951 
  1,253,688 
  1,519,964 

 $ 5,708,603 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars
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20. Segment Information 
a. Outline of Reportable Segments

The Company’s reportable segments are the organizational units for which the Company is able to obtain individual 
financial information in order for the Board of Directors to regularly review performance to determine the distribution of 
management resources and evaluate its business results.

The Company classifies organizational units by products and services. Each organizational unit plans domestic or 
overseas general strategies for its products and services and operates its business.

Therefore, the Company is organized by business segments, and its reportable segments are “Tires” and 
“Industrial Products.”

 
b. Methods of Calculating the Amount of Sales, Income (Loss), Assets and Other Items by Reportable 

Segments
Accounting methods for reportable segments are mostly the same as “2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies.”
Profits from reportable segments are operating income, and intersegment income and transfers are based on prevailing 
market prices.

 
c. Information on Sales, Income (Loss), Assets and Other Items by Reportable Segments

Information on sales, income (loss), assets and other items by reportable segments for the years ended December 31, 
2013 and 2012, was as follows:

Note 1. The “Others” category incorporates operations not included in reportable segments, including aircraft products 
and sports products. 
  
Note 2. Adjustments are as follows: 

(a) Segment income adjustments are the elimination of intersegment transactions.
(b) Segment asset adjustments for the year ended December 31, 2013, of ¥122 million ($1,160 thousand) were the 
elimination of intersegment transactions of ¥34,758 million ($329,802 thousand) and “corporate assets” of  ¥34,636 
million ($328,642 thousand). “Corporate assets” primarily consist of accumulated working capital and investments in 
securities.

  
Note 3. Segment income was adjusted with operating income presented in the consolidated statements of income. 

  
Information on change in reportable segments  

(Change in method of depreciation of property, plant and equipment)  
The Company applied the straight-line method from fiscal 2013 instead of the declining-balance method for the 
depreciation of property, plant and equipment.  

As a consequence of this change in accounting method for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2013, segment 
income increased ¥3,043 million ($28,875 thousand), ¥528 million ($5,011 thousand) and ¥194 million ($1,836 thousand) 
for Tires, Industrial Products and Others, respectively.

  
Related information for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012  
1.  Product and service information

Information has been omitted, as the classification is the same as that for reportable segments.
  
2.  Information about geographic areas 
(a) Sales

Japan
United States of America
Others

Total

Note: Sales are based on the location of clients and classified by country.

Sales to third parties 
Intergroup sales and transfers

Total sales

Segment income

Segment assets
Other items
 Depreciation and amortization
 Impairment loss
 Investment in equity method
     affiliates
 Increase of tangible and
     intangible fixed assets

Millions of Yen

  ¥ 601,630
   —

  601,630

  ¥ 56,647

  ¥ 653,584

  ¥ 23,982
  ¥ 1,956

  ¥ 1,843

  ¥ 33,505

Consolidated
Amount

  ¥ — 
  (5,461)

  (5,461)

  ¥ (19)

  ¥ (123)

  ¥ 300 
  ¥ — 

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 473 

Adjustments

 ¥ 601,630
  5,461

  607,091

 ¥ 56,666

 ¥ 653,707

 ¥ 23,682
 ¥ 1,956

 ¥ 1,843

 ¥ 33,032

Total

  ¥ 25,225
  3,496

  28,721

  ¥ 2,955

  ¥ 63,619

  ¥ 547
  ¥ 546

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 585

Others

 ¥ 576,405
  1,965

  578,370

 ¥ 53,711

 ¥ 590,088

 ¥ 23,135
 ¥ 1,410

 ¥ 1,843

 ¥ 32,447

Reportable
Segment

Total

  ¥ 96,883
  203

  97,086

  ¥ 7,690

  ¥ 66,129

  ¥ 2,034
  ¥ — 

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 3,073

Industrial
Products

 ¥ 479,522
  1,762

  481,284

 ¥ 46,021

 ¥ 523,959

 ¥ 21,101
 ¥ 1,410

 ¥ 1,843

 ¥ 29,374

Tires

2013 (01.01.13–12.31.13)

Sales to third parties 
Intergroup sales and transfers

Total sales

Segment income

Segment assets
Other items
 Depreciation and amortization
 Impairment loss
 Investment in equity method
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Thousands of U.S. Dollars

 $ 5,708,603
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  5,708,603

 $ 537,499

 $ 6,201,579

 $ 227,559
 $ 18,562

 $ 17,488

 $ 317,916
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Amount

 $ ̶ 
  (51,813)

  (51,813)

 $ (179)

 $ (1,161)

 $ 2,855 
 $ ̶ 

 $  ̶ 

 $ 4,486 

Adjustments

 $ 5,708,603
  51,813

  5,760,416

 $ 537,678

 $ 6,202,740

 $ 224,704
 $ 18,562

 $ 17,488

 $ 313,430

Total

 $ 239,343
  33,171

  272,514

 $ 28,038

 $ 603,655

 $ 5,190
 $ 5,187
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 $ 5,550

Others

 $ 5,469,260
 18,642

 5,487,902

 $ 509,640

 $ 5,599,085

 $ 219,514
 $ 13,375

 $ 17,488

 $ 307,880

Reportable
Segment

Total

 $ 919,278
  1,926

  921,204

 $ 72,964

 $ 627,471

 $ 19,297
 $  ̶ 

 $ ̶ 

 $ 29,162

Industrial
Products

 $ 4,549,982
  16,716

  4,566,698

 $ 436,676

 $ 4,971,614

 $ 200,217
 $ 13,375

 $ 17,488

 $ 278,718

Tires

2013 (01.01.13–12.31.13)

Sales to third parties 
Intergroup sales and transfers

Total sales

Segment income

Segment assets
Other items
 Depreciation and amortization
 Investment in equity method
     affiliates
 Increase of tangible and
     intangible fixed assets

  ¥ 559,700
  — 

  559,700

  ¥ 49,696

  ¥ 543,829

  ¥ 25,007

  ¥ 1,524

  ¥ 28,070

 ¥ — 
  (6,181)

  (6,181)

 ¥ (12)

 ¥ (9,156)

 ¥ 663 

 ¥ — 

 ¥ 640 

 ¥ 559,700
  6,181

  565,881

 ¥ 49,708

 ¥ 552,985

 ¥ 24,344

 ¥ 1,524

 ¥ 27,430

  ¥ 23,257
  4,238

  27,495

  ¥  1,252

  ¥ 58,436

  ¥ 732

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 588

 ¥ 536,443
  1,943

  538,386

 ¥ 48,456

 ¥ 494,549

 ¥ 23,612
 
 ¥ 1,524

 ¥ 26,842

  ¥ 91,851
  93

  91,944

  ¥ 5,087

  ¥ 60,908

  ¥ 2,632

  ¥ — 

  ¥ 1,836

 ¥ 444,592
  1,850

  446,442

 ¥ 43,369

 ¥ 433,641

 ¥ 20,980

 ¥ 1,524

 ¥ 25,006

2012 (01.01.12–12.31.12)

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

  ¥ 309,315 
  132,126 
  160,189 

  ¥ 601,630 

  2012 
  (01.01.12–
  12.31.12)

  ¥ 308,918 
  110,997 
  139,785 

  ¥ 559,700 

  2013 
  (01.01.13–
  12.31.13)

 $ 2,934,951 
  1,253,688 
  1,519,964 

 $ 5,708,603 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars
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Capital Amounts Amounts

(b) Property, plant and equipment
  
  

Japan
Thailand
Philippines
Others

Total

(Change in presentation)
Property, plant and equipment located in the Philippines, which had been included in “Others” for the year ended 
December 31, 2012, is disclosed separately effective for the year ended December 31, 2013 because the amount 
exceeded 10% of consolidated property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2013.

To reflect this change in presentation, the information on property, plant and equipment at December 31, 2012, has been 
reclassified to “Philippines” in the amount of ¥16,856 million and “Others” in the amount of ¥40,922 million compared with 
“Others” of ¥57,778 million reported in the prior year’s financial statements.
 
3. External customer information

Disclosure of information on external customers is not required, as there were no sales to a single external customer 
amounting to 10% or more of the Company’s net sales. 

 
4. Impairment losses on fixed assets by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Information has been omitted as the classification is the same as that for reportable segments for the year ended 
December 31, 2013.

The Company omitted this information because of its immateriality for the year ended December 31, 2012.
 
5. Amortization of goodwill and the amortization balance by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2013 

and 2012
The Company omitted this information because of its immateriality for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

 
6. Gains on negative goodwill by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

The Company omitted this information because of its immateriality for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

21. Related Party Transactions
Significant transactions and balances with related parties as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, were as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2013

Terms of transactions and decision-making policy of the terms
(a) The purchase prices of raw materials were determined based on quotations from suppliers and market prices.
(b) The amount of the transactions stated above does not include consumption taxes, while the balance at year-end 
     includes consumption taxes.

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

  ¥ 107,801 
  24,508 
  26,846 
  48,416 

  ¥ 207,571 

  2012 
  (12.31.12)

  ¥ 104,761 
  23,495 
  16,856 
  40,922 

  ¥ 186,033 

Type

Principal
shareholder

Name of
Related

Company

Zeon
Corporation

Address

Chiyoda-ku
Tokyo

Millions
of Yen

¥ 24,211

Principal
Business

Manufacturing

Ratio of Voting
Rights Owning

(owned)

Directly
(10.1%)

Business
Relationship

Purchases
of products

Transactions

Purchases of
raw materials
Interlocking 
Directorate

Millions
of Yen

¥ 15,959

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

$ 151

Accounts 
and Closing

Balances

Trade 
accounts
payable

Millions
of Yen

¥ 9,451

Thousands of
U.S. Dollars

$ 90

  2013 
  (12.31.13)

  $ 1,022,875 
  232,541 
  254,726 
  459,406 

  $ 1,969,548 

Millions of Yen
Thousands of 
U.S. Dollars

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS



64 65

Capital Amounts Amounts
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Japan
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Total
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reclassified to “Philippines” in the amount of ¥16,856 million and “Others” in the amount of ¥40,922 million compared with 
“Others” of ¥57,778 million reported in the prior year’s financial statements.
 
3. External customer information

Disclosure of information on external customers is not required, as there were no sales to a single external customer 
amounting to 10% or more of the Company’s net sales. 

 
4. Impairment losses on fixed assets by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Information has been omitted as the classification is the same as that for reportable segments for the year ended 
December 31, 2013.

The Company omitted this information because of its immateriality for the year ended December 31, 2012.
 
5. Amortization of goodwill and the amortization balance by reportable segment for the years ended December 31, 2013 

and 2012
The Company omitted this information because of its immateriality for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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The Company omitted this information because of its immateriality for the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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Significant transactions and balances with related parties as of and for the year ended December 31, 2013, were as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2013

Terms of transactions and decision-making policy of the terms
(a) The purchase prices of raw materials were determined based on quotations from suppliers and market prices.
(b) The amount of the transactions stated above does not include consumption taxes, while the balance at year-end 
     includes consumption taxes.
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  26,846 
  48,416 

  ¥ 207,571 
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  ¥ 104,761 
  23,495 
  16,856 
  40,922 

  ¥ 186,033 
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Principal
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Millions
of Yen

¥ 24,211
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Rights Owning
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Directly
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Purchases
of products

Transactions

Purchases of
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Interlocking 
Directorate
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of Yen

¥ 15,959

Thousands of
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$ 151
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Balances
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payable
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of Yen

¥ 9,451

Thousands of
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U.S. Dollars

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
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Company Name:
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd.

Head Office: 
36-11, Shimbashi 5-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8685, Japan

Established: 
October 13, 1917 

Paid-in Capital: 
¥38,909 million

Fiscal Year-End: 
December 31 (changed in 2011 from March 31)

General Meeting of Shareholders: 
March (changed in 2012 from June)

Transfer Agent: 
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
1-4-1, Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0005, Japan

Stock Exchange Listings: 
Tokyo, Nagoya

Contact Point for Investors:
PR/IR section, Corporate Communications Dept.
36-11, Shimbashi 5-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8685, Japan
Phone: 81-(0)3-5400-4531    Facsimile: 81-(0)3-5400-4570

Investor Relations Website:
http://www.yrc.co.jp/cp/global/ir

Major Shareholders

Common Stock Price Trends

Authorized number of shares: 

Number of shares issued and outstanding:

Number of shareholders: 

700,000,000

342,598,162—unchanged from December 31, 2012

13,612—down 1,094 from December 31, 2012

ZEON CORPORATION

ASAHI MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust account)

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (trust account) 

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

Stock Price (Yen):

High

Low

Fiscal Year-End

2010

¥ 542

314

440

342,598,162

2011 (4/10–3/11)

¥ 480

318

403

342,598,162

¥ 489

380

432

342,598,162

Name Percentage of total shares (%)Number of shares (thousands)

Shares of Common Stock 
Issued and Outstanding

Shareholder Composition (Shareholding Ratio)

Foreigners
Other domestic 
companies

Individuals
and others

2012
(12/31)

2011
(12/31)

Treasury 
stock

2.2

Stock Price Range and Trading Volume on the Tokyo Stock Exchange

45.711.3 20.7 13.2 5.6

47.5 21.0

Securities
companies

3.5

2013
(12/31) 39.19.3 20.7 21.1 5.74.1

2.6
15.2

1,000

1,100

1,200

1,300

900

800

700

600

500

400

300

80

40

0

Stock price (¥)

Trading Volume (Million shares)  

Apr. 2009 Apr. 2010 Apr. 2011 Jan. 2012 Jan. 2013
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Company Name:
The Yokohama Rubber Co., Ltd.

Head Office: 
36-11, Shimbashi 5-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8685, Japan

Established: 
October 13, 1917 

Paid-in Capital: 
¥38,909 million

Fiscal Year-End: 
December 31 (changed in 2011 from March 31)

General Meeting of Shareholders: 
March (changed in 2012 from June)

Transfer Agent: 
Sumitomo Mitsui Trust Bank, Limited
1-4-1, Marunouchi, Chiyoda-ku, Tokyo 100-0005, Japan

Stock Exchange Listings: 
Tokyo, Nagoya

Contact Point for Investors:
PR/IR section, Corporate Communications Dept.
36-11, Shimbashi 5-chome, Minato-ku, Tokyo 105-8685, Japan
Phone: 81-(0)3-5400-4531    Facsimile: 81-(0)3-5400-4570

Investor Relations Website:
http://www.yrc.co.jp/cp/global/ir

Major Shareholders

Common Stock Price Trends

Authorized number of shares: 

Number of shares issued and outstanding:

Number of shareholders: 

700,000,000

342,598,162—unchanged from December 31, 2012

13,612—down 1,094 from December 31, 2012

ZEON CORPORATION

ASAHI MUTUAL LIFE INSURANCE COMPANY 

Japan Trustee Services Bank, Ltd. (trust account)

The Master Trust Bank of Japan, Ltd. (trust account) 

Mizuho Bank, Ltd.

Stock Price (Yen):

High

Low

Fiscal Year-End

2010

¥ 542

314

440

342,598,162

2011 (4/10–3/11)

¥ 480

318

403

342,598,162

¥ 489

380

432

342,598,162

Name Percentage of total shares (%)Number of shares (thousands)

Shares of Common Stock 
Issued and Outstanding

Shareholder Composition (Shareholding Ratio)

Foreigners
Other domestic 
companies

Individuals
and others

2012
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Treasury 
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2.2
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         Treasury stock of 19,437 thousand shares has been excluded in preparing the list of major shareholders.
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